AFFIANT REPORT

The following are affidavits submitted by residents of Michigan in accordance with the

2020 Presidential Election and the irregularities they experienced before, during and after
the election.

Affiants are listed by last name, please see the index (following) linking to each individually.

Michigan Citizens for Election Integrity



Contents
Arnoldy@@

Brigmon .......cooooiiiiiiiie e

Brunell .........ooooeeiiiiiee e

Caronefd

(0001 | + 7Tl RN

Cushman

Daavettila &
deAngeli .......occvviiiii

Dixon[@

Gaicobazzi

Henderson @

Hermaan

Hilmineni

HumesR

Larsen@@

IMCGFath .....oeveieeeeeee e
Mendelbaum @

Mikolajczak
O'Hallaren

Papsdorf@

Pettibone
Piontak[



POPIAWSKI ... 39

PrESTON. ... .o e et e e e et e e e e e eees 40
SCROINAK ...ttt e e e e e et e e e e e e s e bbb ret e e e e e e e e nbbbaeeeeeeeeaaanbrraees 41
GBIy i, 42
R 11T (= ST PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPRROt 43
STl 44
Y1 4 {0 PSP PP P PSP PPRPP P 45
SEEFfANS ... et 48
TROMAS ..ottt ettt e st e e s st e e st e e st e e s b et e e s b e et e e ae e e s enraeeeean 49



Ryan Arnoldy
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AFFIDAVIT OF RYAN ARNOLDY
RYAN ARNOLDY, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. [ am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a witness,
am competent to testify to them as well.

2. I am a registered voter and credentialed Poll Challenger in the State of Michigan.

3. On November 4, 2020, I arrived at the TCF Center in Detroit Michigan to volunteer as
a Poll Challenger for the GOP. I was told that the Absentee Voter Counting Board was
heavily populated by Democrat challengers and was in need of GOP challengers.

4. [ arrived at approximately 5:00 p.m. As | approached the entrance to the Counting Hall
there was a crowd of people outside who appeared to be waiting to enter but were being
denied access by Detroit Police officers.

5. I walked up to the main entryway to the Counting Hall and showed my poll challenger
credentials to the Police Officer at the entrance. He told me that only media was allowed
in.

6. During the time I was there, from about 5:00 pm to 6:00 pm, I saw about 15-20 people
exiting the Counting Hall and about 10 people entering the same Counting Hall while 1
was there waiting outside the door.

7. Of those people entering, some held cameras and appeared to be media, but others who
were allowed entry did not have any visible sign that they were media, no credentials
or badges around their necks that I could see,

8. My second attempt to gain entry was at about 5:30 pm and again | was told I was not

allowed entry into the Counting Hall.
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9 I asked the Police Officer at the door why they were allowing the media in and why I
was not allowed in as [ have Poll Challenger credentials and the counting is continuing
to go on. He again said only the media was allowed entry.

10. I asked him who had given him these instructions. The Police Officer replied that they
were orders from above and that he, the Police Officer, was just there to enforce the
orders from above.

11 At 6:00 pm I left TCF Hall wondering why they allowed the media in but barred Poll

Challengers while the counting was continuing.

Dated: November 8, 2020

I /8/202

and swomn to before me on: |1 / 3’,9090
/s!
Notary public, State County of: (A)‘W’\,e/
My commission expires

912 [g02

Notary Public State of Michigan
County of Wayne

My Commission
inthe

EXHIBIT 1
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AFFIDAVIT OF BEVERLY BALLEW

Beverly Ballew, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. [ am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, i sworn as a witness,

am competent to testity to them as well.

2. [ am a registered voter in the State of Michigan and the City of St. Clair Shores.

3. I was a Republican Poll Challenger on November 4, 2020.

4, I began observing on November 4, 2020 at approximately 8:30 am.

5. While observing at Table 50, [ witnessed several irregularities where ballot numbers did

not match what was in the voter files. | was approximately six feet away from the table

except when I needed to get closer to observe.

6. I proceeded to take down my own personal notes when a floor supervisor immediately
approached me and in an authoritative manner and told me I was not social distancing.

I responded that he was also not social distancing.

7. With little explanation, the floor supervisor proceeded to threaten me with ejection if I

did not follow his rules. I backed away and continued to observe.

8. There were several instances in which the poll workers used their bodies to prevent me
from watching and observing the ballot counting process.

9. Throughout the day, I witnessed a pattern of intimidation, secrecy, and hostility by the
poll workers. Poll workers would cheer, jeer and clap when poll challengers were
escorted out of the TCF Center. There seemed to be collaboration between the

democratic poll challengers and the City of Detroit poll workers.
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Dated: November 8, 2020
Beverly Ballew

Subscribed me on:
5 OB .2020
Notary public, State of Michigan, County of:

My commission expires: Ol - 14_. 2022

Ra llewr—
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AFFIDAVIT OF ARTICIA BOMER

Articia Bomer, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1 I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a

witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2. | am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3 On November 3, 2020 I was a Republican challenger at the TCF Center in Detroit,
Michigan. | arrived at approximately 9:30pm and left the next morning at

approximately 6:30am.

4 When [ arrived I, along with other Republican challengers, were told we needed to
remain standing in one place and be six feet away from everyone. Eventually we were

told we could move around the counting room,

5 I observed tables 123 and 120. At both table 123 and 120 I noticed USPS boxes of
ballots beneath the table. [ was able to observe that many of these ballots in the boxes
were either straight ticket Republican or had votes for Donald Trump. These ballots

seems to be separated from the rest of the ballots being counted.

EXHIBIT 1
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6. I witnessed a meeting between election worker “team leads” where they gathered
together and spoke, this meeting ended in a cheer. Many of these team leads wore

mask or other materials supporting “Black Lives Matter” or other political causes.

7 At approximately 11:43pm I heard one of the team leads yell “this is our house
tonight!” At approximately midnight, I heard this same man say racist remarks about

black people who support Donald Trump. I believe these remarks were directed at me.

8 I witnessed election workers open ballots with Donald Trump votes and respond by
rolling their eyes and showing it to other poll workers. [ believe some of these ballots

may not have been properly counted.

9 I observed a station where election workers were working on scanned ballots that had
issues that needed to be manually corrected. | believe some of these workers were

changing votes that had been cast for Donald Trump and other Republican candidates.

10. I observed ballots with cursive writing notes at the top right hand corner. I observed

approximately 500 ballots with this writing. These ballots did not have ballot codes

on them.

11 At approximately 4:03am a poll worker announced that 50 boxes of ballots were

coming in. Election workers loudly cheered this announcement.
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12.

15

16.

17.

At approximately 4:50am [ witnessed a man spraying a chemical on a ballot counting
machine. He then placed twenty-seven ballots into the machine and I noticed tape on
the top of the ballot where a ballot number would normally be. Throughout the night I
witnessed him insert these same 27 ballots at least five times.

At approximately 5:15am an announcement came in for counters to clean their tables.

Ballots were still throughout the counting room.

In between the announcing at 4:03am of 50 new boxes and the announcement at
5:15am for workers to clean their tables, | did not observe the 50 new boxes coming in

or counted.

There were no “bag checks” for anyone taking or bringing ballots into the TCF

Center.

On November 4, 2020 I returned to the TCF Center at approximately 10:30am. I was

not allowed in.

I took notes documenting these issues while I was at the TCF Center

Dated: November 8, 2020

Subscribed
Is/

Articia Bomer
AR e \BSNRU—
sworn to before me on

2020

Nolary public, State of Michigan, County ol':w-é.
My commission cxpircs:m _ l‘{“ 20272,

E\ -3-2
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AFFIDAVIT OF SCOTT BRIGMON
Scott Brigmon, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. I am personally {amiliar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2. I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3. On Wednesday November 4, 2020 I arrived at the TFC Center in Detroit, Wayne
County, Michigan at approximately 12:30pm. Upon arriving I received credentials as
a non-partisan challenger for the counting of ballots. At that time | was told by an
attorney for the City of Detroit that no more challengers could be admitted to observe
counting tables until other challengers left. It was not clear to me how they determined
the number of challengers present and I believe their count included Republican
challengers who had already left.

4. At approximately 7:30pm | was informed by an employee of the City of Detroit that |
would be admitted in a group of four non-partisan challengers. 1 then went to a
counting table that was also being monitored by a Democrat and a Republican
challenger. An envelope containing absentee ballots came to this table that had been
mailed to Mount Clemons, Michigan. I challenged this ballot because it was mailed to
an address outside of Detroit, but was returned to Detroit.

5. At approximately 8:30pm | went to another counting table. At this second table there
was a Republican and Democrat challenger. The election workers at this table began
scanning envelopes containing absentee ballots into a computer. The computer would
display a profile with the voter’s information after the envelope was scanned. While at

this table I witnessed an envelope being scanned and the computer displayed “unlisted

EXHIBIT 1
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voter.” The election workers manually entered information into the profile for this
envelope into the computer system. I witnessed the election worker enter in a birthdate
of 1/1/1900 for this envelope. The Republican challenger challenged this ballot. I
witnessed a similar situation occur thirteen more times and I challenged these thirteen
ballots. In all of these situations the ballot was scanned and came up as “unlisted
voter,” the election worker then manually entered information into the computer
including the 1/1/1900 birthdate. The Republican challenger challenged other
additional ballots for the same reason. Al this table I also noticed election workers
manually input the same name into two separate profiles in the computer system for

envelopes that scanned as “unlisted voters.”

Dated: November 7, 2020
[Print name] S ¢, 1t Br\'g mawn

Su and sworn (o before  on:
Is/

Notary public. State of Michigan, County of:

My commission expires: O',C{/ZO/Z/(;:

M
State of
of
My Commission
Acting the
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10.

AFFIDAVIT OF CYNTHIA BRUNELL

CYNTHIA BRUNELL, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

| am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

| am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

| was a Republican Party poll challenger for the November 3™ presidential
election.

Prior to election day, | volunteered and participated in on-line training through
the Republican Party.

On election day, | was assigned as a Republican poll challenger to a late-night
shift (9pm to 5am) at the TCF Center in Detroit.

| arrived at the TCF Center a few minutes before 9pm on Tuesday November 3,
2020 with my husband, David Brunell, an attorney volunteer for the Republican
Party.

| was assigned to table 21.

Table 21 consisted of a circle of separate work tables, staffed by five (5)
individuals who performed designated functions for the opening and reviewing
of absentee ballots.

There was also supervisor who oversaw the ballot review for Table 21 and a
number of others Tables.

When | arrived, | was directed by the election official supervisor to sit in the
center of the aisleway, 6 to 8 feet away from the circle of tables where the

absentee ballots were being reviewed.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

The election workers sitting at the circle of tables for Table 21, refused to speak
to me, only occasionally stating that | should move away, that | was too close or
that they weren't allowed to talk to me.

No one would tell me their names. One of them invited me to sit near him at his
work station but the other workers quickly admonished him — leaving me sitting
in the aisleway.

Election worker in position #1, slit open the envelope. Position #2 verified the
ballot number against the voter registration data base using a lap top computer.
Position #3 would pull out the inner envelope containing the ballot and re-verify
the name and ballot number. Position #4 opened the ballot, removed the
perforated top of the ballot and reviewed the ballot. Position #5 flattened the
reviewed ballots and assembled them in bundles of 50 for actual processing.
Over the course of time, | was trying to keep track of ballot issues that were
identified, but | couldn’t see what was going on so | eventually left my aisle seat
and started walking around the election workers performing their jobs in the
circle of tables.

The ballot issues that were identified by the election workers, included ballot
numbers not matching, lack of signatures, unregistered voters and ballots which
indicated straight ticket selection for both political parties.

When | heard of an irregularity, | would write down the issue in order to keep
track. As the night wore on, | started writing down names and ballot numbers.
Some of the irregularities that | recorded were as follows:

a. Voter Denise Brooks didn't sign the envelope or ballot. Her ballot was
processed through the electronic ballot counter.

EXHIBIT 1
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18

19

20

b. Voter Dervorna Wilson didn't sign the envelope or ballot. Her ballot was
processed through the electronic ballot counter.

c. Voter Kevin Douglas Merriweather 1l ballot numbers didn't match. His
ballot was processed through the electronic ballot counter.

d. Voter Miles Whitfield numbers on envelope and ballot did not match.

White tape was placed on his ballot. His ballot was processed through
the electronic ballot counter.

e. Voter Stacy Denise Prichart didn't sign envelope or ballot . Her ballot was
processed through the electronic ballot counter.

f. Voter Steven Alante Ousley Scott born in 1929 was not a registered
voter. His ballot was processed through the electronic ballot counter.

| was never afforded an opportunity to look at any of the ballots at any point in
the process, in order to ascertain for myself, if there were irregularities. | was
forced to keep a distance. When the election workers identified a problem with
a ballot, | would try to observe it, but was constantly told to keep a distance and
if | asked to see something, they told me that were not permitted to talk to me.
On eleven (11) occasions, irregularities were identified. Those ballots were not
segregated. On a number of occasions, the supervisor directed that some of
the flagged ballots be returned to the election worker in position #3 who was
instructed to place white tape over some portion of the flagged ballot. | could
not identify what specific information was covered by the tape. | assumed that
the white tape indicated that the ballot was flagged and would not be processed.
The ballots with white tape were not separated or segregated but were bundled
with the other ballots for processing and counting.

There was a box for rejected ballots on one of the tables, but no ballots were

ever placed into the box. The supervisor instructed the worker at position #3 not

EXHIBIT 1
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to use the rejection box because the process for dealing with flagged or

irregular ballots had changed.

21.  Twice during my shift, the supervisor removed a stack of ballots from Table 21
after they were opened at position #1 but before they were verified at position
42 | don't know what she did with those ballots but | know they were not
verified or reviewed by Table 21.

22.  To my surprise, all of the 268 ballots reviewed by the workers at Table 21 were
electronically processed and only 4 were rejected. Based on the irregularities

that were identified by the election workers, | had expected that at least eleven

ballots would have been rejected.

Dated: November 8, 2020

IA BRUNELL
51 Broadmoor
Livonia, M1 48154

Subscribed and sworn me on /‘}0‘/@/“1”4" g ze 20
Is/
Notary p lic, State of Michigan, County of. ﬂawmb

My commission expires: Jure- 1Z, 2026

Actig in Coustty o€ Woyne
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William Carzon



AFFIDAVIT OF WILLIAM CARZON

Williarm Carzon, being fivst duly sworn, hereby declares under penalty of perjur

1 [ am personally familiar with the facts siated in this Affdavit and, if sworn as a

witness, an competent to testify to them as well,

I

[ im an adult citizen, resident of Plymouth Township, and 4 registered voter af

the State of Michigan,

Ll [ voted in the November 2020 Presidential Election,
. | voluntecred and was certified o be a Republican poll challenger during the
absentee ballot counting on eleclion night November 3, 2020) at the TCF center

in Detroil, Michigan. 1 volunteered to participate as a poll challenger from

NV €1:%%:C 0202/97/11 DS A9 AIATAOTY

November 3, 2020 starting at 10 pim theough November 4, 2020 until 3:00 an.
o, On November 3, 1 arrived a1 the TCF center at around 2:30 pm and proceeded
1o room number 260 where T was given further instructions on the layout for each
ol the ahsentes ballo counting board eroups, each consisting of 3 inspectors (if
Tully staffed). At approximately 10 pim | proceeded the Noor of the TCF center
where the counting would take place. I presented iy credentials in the counting
board room and spent a significant part of my {ime at table |8,
6. Counting began shortly after that time and T watched the process al table 18,
first paying atiention to the label scanning, name and ballol number
announcement (operator 1) and verification of the name/nu mber {operator 2) on

the ballot. In general, table 18 followed this comimunication process but it was

Appendix - 00139
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=)

ot alwsas easy o hear the confirmation. Talso took the opportunity tosatk w
ather counting stations thronghout the night and 1did not see that this discipline

of anneuncing the name and number becween opecoior 1 and 2 abaays heing
consistently followed,

Druring the night, on two occasions (at the start of the 10 pm shifl and asain laer
in the night), the counting hoard supervisors working al the TCF center were
called over the TCF announcement system Lo mieet near the front of the hall.

On 1wo occasions during the night, T followed operator 3 at another counting
bourd 2roup as he ook the ballots o a tabulator stalion in the cenler of thea hall
to be counted: T saw the ballots fed through the tabulalor machine on at least
two occasions multiple times. Tt is not clear if there was a count mismatch

requiring the ballots to he re-run throngh the tabulator, and T eould not clearly

cee that il there was a count mismatch, that the fabulator was zeroed out belore

re-running them.

On one oocasion at a tabulator station, affer the person operating the tabulator
had run the ballots through the tabulauw provided to her by operator number 3.
she handed back one ballot 1o operator number 3 who originally brought the
ballots from his counting board station o be counted. He look the ballot and then
proceeded to walk back to his counting board table, Fam not certain why a ballot

would be handed back, and understood that after the ballols were run through

the tabulator and the count matched, the ballots that were mn through the

2
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pabulaod were all o e stoved in the security boxes directly behind the tabulator

stations For the given precinct.

10, Between approximately Lam to 4am. the counting taking place at the TCF cenler
wis af a standstill at many tables. 1 observed some counting board tables where
some operators had their heads resting on their tables during this slow lime
without ballots o proceess | also observed some operators at the tabulators
similarly with their heads resting on their tables. 1 also withessed one tatulator
operitor towards the back of the floor playing some sort of card game on his
computer/tabulator sereen.  This was also witnessed by my son and another
acquaintance that we hoth know.

i At around 4 am, a truck arrived at the back entrance of the TCFE center hall. 1

NV €1:9%:C 0202/97/11 DSIN AQ AAATADAYT

walked ta the back of the hall to the large door opening and witnessed a white
truck which had an emblem with a flag and the words Vore Mobile written on it.
My son. who was also a poll challenger al TCF during this time, also witnessed
this as we were standing together for a short time watching the truck being
anloaded. White postal boxes were being taken ol the truck. The while postal
hoxes were similar to those holding ballots that were also at the vanious counting
hoard tables throughout the hall. The boxes that were unloaded from the truck

had a cardboard wrap slecve around them. [ saw hoxes being unloaded from the

rruck and placed on a dolly and rolled over Lo the center of the TCF hall where

they were placed on tables next to the main stage area. The tables in this arca

Appendix - 00141
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did not have similar hoxes on them when these new hoxes arrived. T was able

L roughly count the boxes from the truck which were placed on the tables and
estimate that approximately 60 boxes were unloaded from the truck from that 4
am delivery., When the cardboard sleeve was removed from (he postal boxes,
the individual manila envelopes used 1o hold absentee ballots could be clearly

seen.  Shortly afterwards, over the TCF speakerfannouncement system, specific

DSIN Aq AIATFDAY

counting board tables were called up and representatives then came up to gel —
)
their “additional work" as it was announced over the speaker/ ammunteme:nt%
systerm. | witnessed a person who distributed the ballots, handing them ouf 1o
[\S)

: . -~
some of the respective counting board representatives who were coming up s

pick them up.

NV ¢l

1 The above information is true to the best of my knowledge, information and
belief.

13.  Further affiant says not.

Dated: _A#'E?”'?&:’E- 2! Zddo 5 Sir
William Carzon

Suhscribed and sworn before me on:
MNovemoee 2 . 2020

otary Public, State ol Nlichigan, County of Wayne
My Commission Expires: 94 o] 2025
Acting in the County

GAIL M BEREY l
Wozary Public - State of Michigan
County of Wayns

My Commission Expires Jun 70,2025
d Acting fnkhe County ol A AT
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AFFIDAVIT OF CYNTHIA CASSELL

The Affiant, Cynthia Cassell, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as

follows:

1. My name is Cynthia Cassell. I am an adult citizen and resident of the State of

Michigan.

2. On November 3, 2020 from around 9am-1pm, I helped surveil the exterior of the

Department of Elections in the City of Detroit located on West Grand Blvd.

3. I observed organizations, including a group called “Election Defenders” handing
out free food and t-shirts from large “Dominion Voting” boxes. The boxes of
freebies were taken out of a Ford Focus and placed around two male employees

from the Department of Elections.

4. These two men from the Department of Elections held USPS white open trays.
People driving in the street and walking on the sidewalk would drop absentee

ballots off in the tray.

5. Election Defenders stationed themselves very close to the employees from the

Department of Elections where people dropped off ballots.

6. Campaign workers holding signs and actively campaigning, also stationed

themselves close to the Department of Elections workers, certainly within 100 feet.

7. People walked or drove up and would get handed a free t-shirt that said the word

“Vote” on it upon dropping off absentee ballots.

Appendix - 00028
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8. The two men from the Department of Elections with the open trays would go up
to cars, lean into open windows in the cars to take the ballots, or people would use

the trays as a drop box.
9. The trays were open; nothing seemed secure about this procedure.

10. I saw numerous people drop off absentee ballots and then be handed meals and

t-shirts.

11. My account of being denied to work for the City of Detroit as an election
worker, my report from my surveillance on November 3, 2020, and my experience

at TCF Center on November 4, 2020 is attached to this affidavit.

—
)

o~

,’r’fr 2 g e i .}
o - AL p

/.,- % ) . 4}/‘,.
P .

L o sl W ol
(_  Cynthia Cassell
On this th day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Cynthia

Cassell, who in my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being
duly sworn, deposes and states that she has read the foregoing affidavit by her
subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and that the same is true of her own
knowledge and belief, except as to those matters she states to be on information
and belief, and as to those matters she believes them to be true.

Yydtar (UL, 5@4

Name of Notary Public

WM/UXTLL ' County, Michigan

My Commission Expires: "] ’ 25/ 224

Brittani Wright
Notary Public of Michigan
Wayne County
Expires 04/26/2024
Acting in the County of ____——————
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11/3/2020

Cynthia Cassell Surveillance of Detroit Board of Elections, 2978 W. Grand Blvd, Detroit,
48202

I arrived at 9:00 am and witnessed two black males, 20’s, wearing a Detroit Election
Apron collecting ballots on West Grand Blvd from cars. They were using open USPS
boxes without a top. Sometimes the drivers would drop the ballot in the box, at other
times the work would lean into the car and take the ballot from the occupants. Around
10:00am an SUV with World Central Kitchen workers pulled up in front of the Board of
Elections entrance. The workers were giving free take-away meals to people who had
dropped off their ballots. In front of the SUV was a hatchback belonging to Election
Defenders, who was also giving away free T-shirts and snacks such as chips and
cookies to voters.

Within 20 feet of the Election Workers collecting ballots were campaigners for Sherry
Gay-Dagnogo. They were campaigning with signs.

10:30 an election worker bought out Dominion Voting boxes. In those boxes were T-
shirts with the word VOTE in large letters, and something written in red in smaller
letters. | was unable to read the red writing. The men with the boxes collecting
ballots were giving away the t-shirts to the voters in the cars. People were also
coming out of the Board of Elections and collecting T-shirts for themselves.
Everyone during this time were also going to the World Central Kitchen vehicle and
collecting a free meal and bottle of water.

12:30 A large commercial vehicle was circling the block giving away pizza to voters. |
was on the phone with the Trump Election Attorneys giving my report so | do not
have the exact wording but | believe it was Pizza To the Polls.

1:00 pm | went to TCF Center to be a poll challenger. Attached is my incident report
with a democrat supervisor taking me into the Men's Room with a blank ballot.

While in the counting room | was told that | was not allowed to stand near other GOP
Poll Challengers and was kept about 20’ away from the counting tables. | did not
notice any republican vote counters at the table. It was a very hostile environment. |
was taken to the blank ballot and military vote table. | withnessed a poll worker taking
a stack of military ballots and placing it under the table. The poll worker was
challenged and put the ballots back.

2:30 pm | went to lunch with other GOP Poll workers. When we returned to the
counting room we were locked out by the police who claimed that the room was over
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capacity. | was able to use my Press Pass to re-enter the room but was not allowed
outside the press area.

| received a call to return to my surveillance at the Board of Elections. | did not
witness anything of significance, and | left around 5:30 with the 3 other GOP
members who were also watching the rear of the building for ballot transfers.
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I, Cynthia Cassell, was hired as a Poll Worker for Absentee Ballots in Detroit as a
Republican. It was very difficult to get assigned to any training class. | made several
calls and finally got to the very last class at Wayne County Community College North
West Campus on Saturday, October 24. | started the class and an hour through |
realized they had placed me in the incorrect class. | was taken out of the class and sent
to a supervisor. | was then told that they hired too many people and | can’t be placed
anywhere in Detroit. | did have several heated emails with the Clerk’s Office, but since
they were sent through their internal system, | do not have copies. For months | filled
out their forms waiting for training. | was never placed in a Poll Working paid position,
yet when | was in Cobo Hall as a Poll Challenger, | only saw tables of Democrats, many
of them wearing political t-shirts and masks.

To follow are some of the emails confirming that | was hired.

Poll Worker Training Resources
Inbox

Democracy MVP <DemocracyMVP@govsubscriptions.michilyan. g 26,
1:12 PM

to litlsecr

Hi Cynthia

Thank you again for signing up to serve as an election worker in the upcoming election. By stepping
up to serve your state and community, you are making a significant difference and helping our
elections run safely and smoothly.

If you have been hired and placed by a local clerk to work on Election Day, congratulations
and thank you!
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If you have not been hired and placed by a clerk to work on Election Day, please check-in with us
and let us know where you’re at in the process by filling out our check-in
form: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/67Q78FR

In addition to mandatory training provided by clerk staff, please take a moment to review the training
resources below so you are ready to serve on Election Day.

There are 8 short videos — and you can watch them all on our Youtube plavlist.

You can also find supplemental poll worker training resources by
visiting Michigan.gov/DemocracyMVP and visiting our Election Worker Resources section. There,
you will find informational one-pagers in addition to the videos in the playlist above.

Training videos and materials cover many key subjects, including:

« What to Expect on Election Day
« Opening the Polls

« Processing Voters

« Closing the Polls

« Absentee Counting Boards

« Challengers

« COVID-19 Safety

« Five Facts About Voting

These resources don’t replace training provided by clerks. But they can help you prepare.
Thank you for being part of the team preserving and protecting democracy this fall.

All the best,
The DemocracyM VP Team

Re: Poll Worker - #D100271586

Inbox

DemocracyMVP Inbox via mdossupport.happyfox.com Mon, Oct 12,
7:01 PM

to me
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Dear Cynthia Cassell,

Thanks for letting us know and for your patience here - there is definitely still a need in the area we suggested
you apply. We are aware that their clerk's office 1s still currently assessing needs, sorting through election
worker applications and actively reaching out to applicants. We appreciate your patience as they continue
contacting applicants to set up training - I'd advise sitting tight and waiting to hear from them for at least
another week or so.

You can also proactively reach out to their elections department to check on the status of your application -
although there may be a wait to speak with someone.

Hope this helps and please let me know if you have further questions.

Sincerely,

Sarah Reinhardt

Department of State Information Center
Michigan Department of State
Secretary of State Jocelyn Benson
Michigan.gov/SOS

Email ID: #DI00271586
Subject: Poll Worker

Message: Last Contact Reply

From: Cynthia Cassell

Date: Mon, Oct 12, 2020 at 02:47 PM

I have been contacted by phone once regarding training to be a poll worker. Since [ work 8-6 I was going to be
contacted about a weekend training class. I haven't been contacted and would like to work at Cobo Hall with
the absentee ballots.

Please contact me so that [ may finish this process.

Cynthia Cassell
Extraordinary Person

248-672-4431 | cynthiacassell@gmail.com

detroitpoliworkers@pollchief.com Mon, Oct 5,
5:08 PM

to CYNTHIACASSELL
Hello CYNTHIA CASSELL

Welcome to your elections officer portal. This portal will enable you to indicate that
you're interested in working in an upcoming election, to switch yourself from one
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scheduled class into a different class, to review your payroll history, to review previous
messages, and to see your work assignment.

To log in, click on this link https://www.voteddetroit.net/Pollaccess, enter your user
name 824412 and password 110807 in the appropriate boxes, then click on
the Login button.

This will open your home page:

We recommend that once you've logged in, you click on the "Change my username"
and "Change my password" and change them to something more easily memorable
for you.

Then you may want to click Update/change my personnel information to add or to
change the details we have listed for you.

Since we may be planning more than one election simultaneously, please check the
dropdown menu to be sure you are working on the correct election when you click to
view your work assignments or your training classes.

To access your portal, please click on the link below. You may wish to save this link to
your Favorites bar in your online browser for easy access in the future. Then enter the
pre-assigned user name and password.

Link to access the portal: https://www.voteddetroit.net/Pollaccess

Pre-assigned user name: 824412 (Don't forget to change it to a user name you can
remember).

Pre-assigned password: 110807 (Don't forget to change it to a password you can
remember).

Enjoy exploring your poll worker portal.
Sincerely

Detroit Election Administrator

Poll Worker Check-In - Response Requested

Inbox

MDOS-DemocracyMVP <DemocracyMVP@michigan.gov> Sun, Sep 27,
11:18 AM

to litlsecr@umich.edu
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Hi Cynthia — Hope all is well with you! This is Sally with Democracy MVP. I wanted to check in
with you on your status as a Michigan poll worker and to see how the process is going for you!
Thanks again for signing up to serve in Michigan and for helping to protect our elections - could
you take a look at the below questions and send me a reply as soon as you can?

Please review this email carefully and provide the requested response.

Please respond to this email and let us know:
1. Have you submitted your application to a clerk office?
2.  Which clerk’s office did you submit your application to?
3. Have you heard back from the clerk on next steps (hiring, training, placement etc)?

As a reminder, serving as a poll worker in Michigan is a paid position, net a velunteer position.
To serve as a poll worker, you must be formally hired and trained by a clerk’s office.

If you have submitted your application at least one week ago but have not yet heard from the
clerk’s office on next steps, we want to know so we can be sure you are connected with an office
that needs your help! For more details on how Democracy MVP works to connect you with a
clerk’s office in need, please read “How does this process work?” below the line.

If you still need to submit your application, a reminder of your next steps are also listed below
the line. Please submit your application to the clerk’s office as soon as possible. Most clerk’s
offices in Michigan conduct training in late September or October, so don’t miss your window to

apply!

We invite you to keep us updated on your election worker journey and also help us recruit more
election workers by following and sharing Democracy MVP content on Twitter, Instagram,
and Facebook at @DemocracyMVP.

Sincerely,

Sally Marsh

Director of Special Projects
Michigan Department of State
Secretary of State Jocelyn Benson

If you have not yet submitted your application to your clerk’s office, your next steps are listed
below...

... but first, I want to explain a bit how this process works.
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How does this process work?

Democracy MVP helps to match prospective election workers, also known as election inspectors
or poll workers, with a clerk’s office in Michigan who may hire them to help with elections.

We have listed instructions on how to apply below, but first, there are a few important things to
note in order to participate in this process.

1. Democracy MVP does not hire poll workers. Our office serves as a
“matchmaker” for prospective election workers looking for a clerk’s office in Michigan to
work for in November. We provide you with a suggested clerk’s office to apply at, and all
hiring decisions are made at individual clerks’ offices.

2. Each clerk’s office operates independently from Democracy MVP. Each
clerk’s office is also run independently of one another. This means that each clerk handles
hiring, training and payment of poll workers differently. Clerks also do not typically

share poll worker applications with other clerks, meaning that when you apply with a clerk,
you are only applying to serve as a poll worker with that specific location,

Once you’ve submitted your application to a clerk’s office, all questions regarding your
application status, scheduling, training, polling location placement, and pay rate should be
directed to the clerk’s office where you applied.

3. Our suggested assignments are just that - suggestions! As a registered

voter in Michigan, you are welcome to apply to serve as a poll worker at any clerk’s office in
Michigan. If you do not wish to work at the location we suggested, you can apply elsewhere.

You can find any clerk’s contact details by visiting Michigan.gov/Vote

4. Michigan's poll workers are paid employees, not volunteers. To serve as
a poll worker, you must be hired by a clerk’s office and trained. Please do not show up to serve
as a poll worker on election day without having first been formally hired and trained by a
Michigan Clerk.

If you have general questions or comments about the role of a poll worker, about the process,
or if you are having difficulty applying with or contacting your suggested clerk’s office, feel
free to email us at DemocracyMVP@Michigan.gov

How do | become an election worker?

Your next step for becoming an election worker is to complete the official State of
Michigan State of Michigan Election Inspector Application and submit the full application
to your assigned clerk’s office for review.
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As a reminder, to become an election worker (also known as an election inspector
or poll worker) in Michigan, you must be a registered voter in Michigan — or if you are
between the ages of 16 — 17, you must be a Michigan resident.

We have listed a suggested clerk’s office for you to submit your application, as well as their
contact information, in a previous email. Please note that suggested clerk’s office assignments
have been made based on areas with the highest need for election workers and proximity, and
that our suggested clerk may not be your personal clerk’s office.

If you have a strong preference to submit an application to your local clerk over your suggested
location, you can find your local clerk’s information and office hours at Michigan.gov/Vote. Just
input your name, birth year, and zip code, and, on the next page, select “Local Clerk.”

Initial Training Video

Before you attend the local clerk’s training and work the polls on Election Day, please view

this introductory election inspector training video from the Michigan Bureau of Elections (it’s
only about 10 minutes long). It will give you an overview of your role and an introduction to key
items to know on Election Day.

You can view the training video
here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ul cavVSNoeY &feature=youtu.be

Can I sign up with a friend?

Absolutely! While we cannot guarantee you will be selected to work together on election day, we
encourage you to ask your friends, family and neighbors to sign up to serve together. If you are
hoping to work at the same location, have your friend fill out our online sign-up form

at Michigan.gov/DemocracyM VP, and then you can both submit your full and complete State of
Michigan Election Inspector Application (link above) to the same clerk’s office.

What happens after | submit my application?

Upon submission of your application, all future correspondence regarding your election worker
application status, training and next steps will come from the clerk’s office. Each clerk’s office
handles election worker hiring and assignments independently, so our office will be unable to
provide status updates on your application once submitted.

If you have submitted your application at least one week ago, but have not heard back
from the clerk’s office, please let us know so we can make sure you are placed in a jurisdiction
that needs your help on Election Day.

For questions, concerns or updates on election worker recruitment, feel free to reach out to us
at DemocracyMVP@Michigan.gov our check out our FAQ available

at Michigan.gov/DemocracyMVP. You can also help us recruit more election workers by
following and sharing our Democracy MVP on Twitter, Instagram, and Facebook at
@DemocracyM VP,
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Thanks again for joining the team that is protecting and strengthening our democracy. We are
fortunate to have your help in this important endeavor for our state.

Attachments area
Preview YouTube video Democracy MVP Training Video

NV €1:4%:C 0202/9T/1T DOSIN Aq AIATIDTY

November Election Worker Next Steps
Inbox

MDOS-DemocracyMVP <DemocracyMVP@michigan.gov> Sat, Sep 5,
1:05 PM

to litlsecr@umich.edu

Dear Cynthia,
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Thank you signing up to serve as an election worker in Michigan! You are part of an impressive
team of thousands from across the state who have stepped up to serve.

Please find your next steps for becoming an election worker listed below, as well as answers
to frequently asked questions.

Michigan’s elections need help in November. You’re doing your part - now help us recruit more!
After you follow the below steps to become a poll worker, follow this link to share on Twitter
and encourage others to join our team! You can also follow us at Democracy MVP on Instagram
and Facebook.

]

Your suggested clerk’s office assignment and next steps:

Wayne County — Detroit City
Clerk Janice Winfrey
2978 W. GRAND BOULVARD
DETROIT MI 48204
313-224 3260

Your next step is to visit the Detroit Poll Worker Portal (link below) and select “Click Here to
Apply Online” to submit your information directly to the Detroit City Clerk’s Office.

Detroit Poll Worker Portal: Vote4Detroit.net/PollAccess

You should hear from the Detroit City Clerk’s office within a few days of completing the portal
about signing up for a training session.

What if | want to work a specific assignment or polling location?

If you have a request to work a specific assignment, job, or polling location, please communicate
this with the clerk’s office where you apply. If the clerk’s office where you apply is not able to
accommodate your request, feel free to notify us and we are happy to refer you to a different
clerk’s office in need.

All suggested clerk assignments have been made based on highest need areas and proximity, and
that the suggested clerk may not be your personal clerk’s office. You may apply in any
jurisdiction in Michigan.

If you have a strong preference to submit an application to a different clerk, you can find your
local clerk’s information and office hours at Michigan.gov/Vote. Just input your name, birth
year, and zip code, and, on the next page, select “Local Clerk.”

Initial Training Video
Before you attend the local clerk’s training and work the polls on Election Day, please view
this introductory election inspector training video from the Michigan Bureau of Elections (it’s
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only about 10 minutes long). It will give you an overview of your role and an introduction to key
items to know on Election Day.

You can expect to hear from our office with further additional training resources as we approach
November.

You can view the training video
here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ul cavVSNoeY &feature=youtu.be

Can I sign up with a friend?

Absolutely! While we cannot guarantee you will be selected to work together on election day, we
encourage you to ask your friends, family, and neighbors to sign up to serve together. If you are
hoping to work at the same location, have your friend fill out our online sign-up form

at Michigan.gov/DemocracyM VP, and you can both submit your full and complete State of
Michigan Election Inspector Application (link above) to the same clerk’s office.

For questions, concerns or updates on election worker recruitment, contact us
at DemocracyM VP@Michigan.gov our check out our FAQ available

at Michigan.gov/DemocracyMVP.

Thank you again for joining the team that is protecting and strengthening our democracy. We are
fortunate to have your help this fall.

Sincerely,

Sally Marsh

Director of Special Projects
Michigan Departmént of State
Secretary of State Jocelyn Benson
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A. COSTANTINO and EDWARD P. AFFIDAVIT OF PATRICK J.
McCALL, JR., COLBECK
Plaintiff,

=-VS-

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION

COMMISSION; JANICE M. WINFREY, in FILE NO: 20- -AW
her official capacity as the CLERK OF THE
CITY OF DETROIT and the Chairperson of JUDGE

the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION;
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official
capacity as the CLERK OF WAYNE
COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY

BOARD OF CANVASSERS,
Defendants.
/
David A. Kallman (P34200)
Erin E. Mersino (P70886)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551)
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622)

GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER
Attorneys for Plaintiff

5600 W. Mount Hope Hwy.
Lansing, MI 48917

(517) 322-3207/Fax: (517) 322-3208

AFFIDAVIT

The Affiant, Robert Cushman, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1. My name is Patrick J. Colbeck, I was a poll challenger for the November 3, 2020 election,

and I am a resident of Wayne County.

2. At approximately 5:30pm on November 3, 2020, I asked Daniel Baxter if Tabulation
Computers were connected to internet. Mr. Baxter said simply “No.”
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3. At approximately 5:45pm on November 3, 2020, I first asked Chris Thomas how the
tabulated results were to be transferred to the County and other parties. He said he didn’t know,
but he would find out. I repeated this inquiry throughout the evening until Mr. Thomas
responded that he would not be able to release that information until the end of the next

day. Early during the morning, I was able to look at a copy of the Detroit Election manual which
specified that the tabulated votes would be copied from the adjudicator computers to a series of
flash drives.

4. At approximately 7:30pm on November 3, 2020, about 50% of Poll Workers left the AV
Counting Board before 8pm in violation of MCL 168.792a(11). An announcement was made by
Detroit Election Officials at 7:45pm calling them back but most had already left the AV
Counting Board area.

- At approximately 11pm on November 3, 2020, I asked David Nathan if any of the
computers were connected to the internet. He said “No.” When I asked for confirmation, he said
“Trust me.” I stated that he may have been misled. When I pressed for a demonstration, he
repeated “Trust me.” All it takes to confirm the connectivity status of a Windows computer is to
roll the cursor over the LAN connection icon in the bottom right corner of the display. When
there is no internet connection, a unique icon showing a cross-hatched globe appears. 1
proceeded to review the terminal screens for the Tabulator and Adjudicator computers and I
observed the icon that indicates internet connection on each terminal. Other poll challengers can
attest to this observation as required (e.g. Kristina Karamos and Randy Bishop).

6. Sometime during the evening I proceeded to examine the physical cabling connections
between all of the computers in the facility. The results of this observation are captured in the
attached network topology diagram. The IT technician stationed on the stage actively
discouraged any close-up observation of the network. Phone usage ban discouraged taking
photographs of equipment. There were no observed ethernet connections for Electronic Poll
Books at AV Counting Boards, but Wi-Fi Routers were present with attached active Wi-Fi
networks in area including one called “AV_Connect” and a separate one for “CPSStaff” which
were both of sufficient signal strength to be accessed outside of the Counting Board as well as
inside. Idid not confirm presence of internet connection for Electronic Poll Books but the
“security incident” at 10am on 11/3 would seem to indicate that they were connected to internet
via Wi-Fi.

o Further affiant says not.

P%rick J\?zflbeck
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A. COSTANTINO and EDWARD P. AFFIDAVIT OF ROBERT
McCALL, JR., CUSHMAN
Plaintiff,

=-VS-

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION

COMMISSION; JANICE M. WINFREY, in FILE NO: 20- -AW
her official capacity as the CLERK OF THE
CITY OF DETROIT and the Chairperson of JUDGE

the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION;
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official
capacity as the CLERK OF WAYNE
COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY

BOARD OF CANVASSERS,
Defendants.
/
David A. Kallman (P34200)
Erin E. Mersino (P70886)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551)
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622)

GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER
Attorneys for Plaintiff

5600 W. Mount Hope Hwy.
Lansing, MI 48917

(517) 322-3207/Fax: (517) 322-3208

AFFIDAVIT

The Affiant, Robert Cushman, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1. My name is Robert Cushman. I am an adult citizen and resident of the State of
Michigan.
2. I served and was trained to be a poll challenger for the November 2020 election in

Detroit, Michigan.
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3. During my observations of the normal processing of ballots on November 4"
between about 7:45 a.m. and 8:30 a.m. I was substantially obstructed from performing my
challenger duties of observing and making notes at Board Number 31. The persons involved either
directly or indirectly involved: 1. A worker named Joe, 2. A supervisor named Miss Browner, 3.
an unknown person with no credentials, 4. a Democratic Challenger with credentials and one of

the AVCB leaders named David Nathan.

4, On Wednesday, November 4, 2020, Detroit election officials told us that they were
going to process military ballots last. I did my best to try to observe the processing/duplication of

the military ballots.

5. On November 4, 2020, I was surprised to see numerous new boxes of ballots arrive
at the TCF Center in the evening. I first noticed these boxes in the distribution area after many of
the military ballots had been distributed and processed. I estimate these boxes contained several

thousand new ballots when they appeared.

6. The main list of persons who had registered to vote on or before November 1, 2020,
was listed on an electronic poll book, often referred to as the QVF. As I understand it, the
Supplemental Sheets were the lists of persons who had registered to vote on November 2, 2020 or

November 3, 2020.

7. I observed that none of the names on these new ballots were on the QVF or the

Supplemental Sheets.

8. I saw the computer operators at several counting boards manually adding the names

and addresses of these thousands of ballots to the QVF system.

0. When I asked what the possible justification was to counting ballots from unknown,
unverified “persons,” I was told by election supervisors that the Wayne County Clerk’s Office had

“checked them out.”

10. I challenged not one ballet, but the entire process as the names were not in the QVF

or Supplemental Sheets and because the DOB’s were all wrong, all being marked as 01-01-1900.

11.  An Election Supervisor near board number #86 advised me to go to the podium of
election officials and ask one of them to help me. I did, and I enlisted the help of one of the leaders,

a young man named Anthony Miller.
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12. Mr. Miller walked me back to board number #86 and asked what I wanted the
challenge to say. I said that I did not want to challenge just one ballot, but the entire process, as I

was witnessing several thousand ballots inputted illegally.

13, Mr. Miller advised the computer operator what to type in as a challenge so that it

was part of the Official Record in the Poll Book for Board Number #86.

14. I challenged the authority and the authenticity of all of these ballots that were being
processed late with absolutely no accompanying documentation, no corresponding name in the

QVF, and no corresponding name in the Supplemental List.

15. Every ballot was being fraudulently and manually entered into the Electronic Poll
Book (QVF), as having been born on January 1, 1900. This “last” batch of ballots was processed
in the 8:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. time frame.

16. When I asked about this impossibility of each ballot having the same birthday
occurring in 1900, I was told that was the instruction that came down from the Wayne County

Clerk’s office.

17. Mr. Miller was very clear about these late ballots and that the instructions were

coming from the Wayne County Clerk’s office.

18. I was surprised and disappointed at the preponderance of dishonesty, irregularities,

and fraudulent tactics at the November 3, 2020 election at the TCF Center.

19.  The above information is true to the best of my information, knowledge, and belief.
20.  Further affiant says not. W j @M
Robert Cushman

On this 7th day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Robert Cushman, who
in my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that he has read the foregoing affidavit by him subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and that
the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters he states to be on

information and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true.

St?ﬁﬁen P. Kallman
Notary Public, Eaton County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: 11/26/2025
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AFFIDAVIT OF Kathleen Daavettila

I, Kathleen Daavettila , being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a

witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

[d

I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3. On September 23, 2020 my husband and I filled out and sent in applications to work
in the Detroit election for the November 3, 2020 presidential election. On the
application we specified that we are not flexible to work at any polling site and would

like to work at the TCF center absentee voter count board.

On October 1, 2020 both my husband and | received a voicemail from Will Griffin at
the City of Detroit Elections Department, calling to let us know that our training was
scheduled for October 6, 2020 at 1:30pm, and that the location of the training was the
northwest Wayne County Community College Campus located at 8200 West Outer
Drive, Southfield, MI and that I would be in room 101G.

On October 1, 2020 I arrived for the training at said location. Upon arrival [ was told
that the training was moved to a different building, which it was. When | got to the
training location, I was asked where I was told to go, and I told them room 101G, so |
was sent to the coordinating room at the new location, At the introduction of the
training the instructor informed us that we will be working as Electronic Poll
Inspectors. I raised my hand, and I asked, “What about absentee ballot counting at the
TCF center, that is what 1 signed up for.” The instructor then told me that they needed
1,100 people to work at the absentee counting board TCF center and they filled them
right away, so there is no need for them right now. But that I could call 313-876-0227
and tell them when I signed up and ask where 1 am on the list. After this I left the

training. As soon as | got out to my car, I called the number, and it rang and rang and

-1-
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rang with no answer. | called multiple more times that day, and the next day, each

time with no answer, and no going to voicemail.

On Wednesday November 4, 2020 my husband and | went down to the TCF absentee
counter board in response to the call for more Republican poll watchers/challengers,
After getting our credentials we went into the absentee counter board room. The room
was larger than a football field with people everywhere. While I was in line in to
check-in in the counting room, I started talking to someone in a group that was
wearing our yellow GOP wristband. They had a packet of instructions with the
heading relating to, “Tactics to Distract GOP Challengers”, which he let me borrow to
read, unfortunately I didn’t get time to read anything else on it. Another man in the
group started telling me, “our main job is to distract and disrupt the GOP challengers,”
then a woman in the group grabbed the packet of papers from my hands and said, “no,

no, no, she’s a republican, she doesn’t need that, bye, bye.”

When we checked in, we had to write our party affiliation, our name, and the time that
we checked in, looking at the sign in sheet, there were over 10 times the amount of
democrats than there were republicans (this was verified as we checked out later,
when the person working at the table had to flip through many pages to find my name

to check me out.)

The atmosphere in the room was very hostile towards me. Numerous times I had poll
workers and democrat challengers screaming at me, if I took a step closer to the table
to get a better view of the ballot, if another republican walked by the table or stopped
to ask me a question, if my mask started to slip and show the top part of my nostril,
multiple times I was told I was going to get kicked out if any of those things happened
again. At one point when [ was challenging a ballot where the ballot number in the
computer did not match the ballot number on the ballot and envelope, the poll worker
did not write that I challenged the ballot in the remarks, so I kindly asked if they

needed to write my name that | challenged the ballot, as they had previously. When |
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asked, about 4 or 5 democrats that happened to be right next to the table (remember |
was hollered at if even one other republican even walked close to the table while I was
standing next to it) started screaming at me that I am not allowed to talk to the workers
at the table. A couple of minutes later a male supervisor came to our table and started
hollering at me that [ am not allowed to talk to the workers or interfere with the
process, and that I am going to be kicked out if I do that again. I kindly apologized to
him and I did not say a single word nor even make eye contact with anyone at the

table for the remainder of the time that [ was there.

On the contrary, multiple other democrats stopped to visit with the democrat
challenger at the table, one even stood right next to her as they both watched the
screen together and talked about the ballot. Nothing was said by ANYONE to them
about having more than one democrat at the table. I did not say anything as I did not
feel safe to (I am a small (53" 130Ib) pregnant white woman), for fear of getting
screamed and hollered at if I opened my mouth. Also, about a half an hour after the
supervisor stopped to holler at me about saying something to the table worker, both
the “non-partisan” and democrat challengers huddled next to the worker at the
computer who was scanning the ballots, and talked to them for at least a minute.

Again, I did not say anything for fear of being screamed at.

I found it interesting that cvery ballot that I challenged where the computer ballot
number and the ballot and envelope number did not match up, the partisan challenger

nor the democrat challenger ever challenged the ballot.

Each ballot that I challenged, a remark was noted in the computer that the numbers did

not malch up, and then the ballot was processed anyway.

Also, the entire time that I was at the TCF center, I did not see a single signature

verified by any registration document,

Around 3pm more and more police officers started to show up. Around this time the doors
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to the room were closed and they would not let anyone else into the room, and the windows
into the room started getting covered with cardboard and paper. It was also around this time
that the GOP issued a lawsuit to stop counting ballots. It started to feel more unsafe in the

(R

room, people started chanting, “stop the count!” while others chanted, “keep the count!™.
They continued to count ballots, I let the supervisor know that every ballot counted past the
time of the lawsuit I am challenging. The supervisor said that after the process all of the
ballots, they will make a blanket remark stating that all ballots after that time are being

challenged.

I was not treated with respect by a single person that I had interaction with (whether |
wanted that interaction or not, with random democrat challengers hollering at me) except for
one male supervisor, that I spoke with when [ was challenging every ballot after the lawsuit

was filed.

Let it be known, that I did not respond to a single person who hollered or screamed at me
except for when | kindly apologized to the supervisor after I had spoken to the poll worker

who had not written that I challenged the ballot.

Between 3pm and 3:57pm I witnessed three white males being thrown out by the police (all
on separate occasions,) each time it happened, the entire room burst out into cheering and
clapping. The outbursts that I heard around me when this happened was, “must be a Trump

supporter!”

My husband and I checked out at 3:57pm, as I was in fear of safety for myself and my unborn
baby. We wanted to leave before the hostility escalated any further. After we checking out,

we had to leave through a back exit, directed by police.
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Dated: November 8, 2020

Notary Public - State of Mich
County of
My Commission
inthe

Subscribed and sworn to before me on: [} l %’I 205

Notary public, State County of;

My commission expires:

Al 7| 20 o4

ka een Doa

Kathleen Daavettila

906 281-1635

a lfg] 20
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AFFIDAVIT OF ADAM de ANGELI

The Affiant, Adam de Angeli, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1. I am an adult citizen of the United States and a resident of Michigan.

2. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

3. I served as a poll worker in the City of Detroit on November 3, 2020.

4, I have been a Republican Party precinct delegate since 2008. Since getting

involved in politics, I have worked on numerous campaigns, serving at various times in every
role from volunteer to senior consultant.

5. I have been a campaign manager, treasurer, press secretary, information
technology director, and state campaign manager for a presidential campaign.

6. I have been a poll challenger and an election day operations coordinator. I was
also a challenger in a recount.

7. I worked in the U.S. House of Representatives as a legislative assistant for more
than a year, and in the Michigan House of Representatives as a senior legislative assistant for
more than three years. In these capacities, I became very familiar with Michigan elections.

8. I registered to become a poll worker for the City of Detroit on September 1, 2020
using the City of Detroit website: https://detroitmi.gov/departments/elections/become-election-
day-pollworker._Neither the web page nor the application contained an email address or even
mailing address where the application was to be submitted, so I called the Department of
Elections and asked if there was a way to submit my application electronically. I was told I could

apply online at “voted4detroit.net”.
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9. I advised the elections official that there was no application at the website;
nothing but a login screen. He responded: “That’s strange. The website was supposed to be open
today. Maybe they’re still working on it. You can try again tomorrow.” The web page appears to
remain unchanged as of November 8, 2020 and the page is archived at https://web.archive.org/
web/20181127073658/https://www.voteddetroit.net/.

10. I ended up driving to the Department of Elections at 2978 W. Grand Blvd in
Detroit and delivered my application in person. At the Department of Elections there was a man
behind a counter and two women speaking with him. The man asked if I was there to apply to be

a poll worker; I said yes and presented my application. He took it from me and thanked me.

NV €1:%%:C 0202/9T7/11 DSIN Aq FATIDTI

However, I later received no response from the Department of Elections, not even an
acknowledgment of receipt.

11.  After hearing no response in weeks, I eventually applied to be a poll worker in
Oakland County. The County Clerk Department of Elections’ website featured a link to the poll
worker application. The form included an email address to submit applications. I received
prompt acknowledgement of receipt and received a phone call to schedule training within 48
hours of applying.

12. Three weeks from the date I first applied to be a Detroit poll worker, on
September 22, I received an email from a friend indicating that an online registration form was
discovered at this address: https://www.voteddetroit.net/Pollaccess/PollWorkerReg.aspx. 1
applied the following day and immediately received an automated email attached, including a
login link, username, and password.

13. I opened the link and logged in successfully. The home page displayed top-level

LIS

tabs: “Home”, “Training”, “Work Assignment”, “Messages”, and “Questions/Comments”. The
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“Home” page contained links for “Edit My Personal Information”, “View Work History”,

ER)

“Update Username/Password”, and “Review Training Materials.” The “Review Training
Materials” link took me to a page with no training materials. The “View Work History” page
was blank. The “Training” and “Work Assignment” pages were blank. The “Messages” tab
contained only one message, identical to the automated email I had received, and the “Questions/
Comments” tab led to a web form for submitting questions and comments. Essentially, there
was no information on the web page.

14. On October 13, 2020 at 11:38am, a man, who introduced himself as from the
Department of Elections, called from the phone number 313-876-0261, identified on my phone’s
caller ID as “Skalski Anntt”.

15.  The individual from the Department of Elections asked if I have taken my poll
worker training. I replied that I had not heard from anyone with the City of Detroit since signing
up three weeks ago and was not aware of any training.

16. The individual from the Department of Elections said trainings were available the
next day at 10am, 1pm, Spm.

TRAININGS OCTOBER 14th and 15th, 2020

17. I arrived for training the next day, October 14, 2020, at Wayne County
Community College at 8200 Outer Drive West in Detroit at 1:00pm. I was asked what I was
there for, and I responded I was there for poll worker training. The training took place on the
third floor; the room number was an even number approximately 324. No one asked for ID or

credentials.
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18.  Training began at 1:42pm. I recorded the training for the main purpose of
listening to it again before Election Day to remind myself of any important information. I was
acting in an official capacity as a poll worker and the training appeared to be a public meeting.

19. The trainer noted that we were to request six feet of space from any poll
challengers. The trainer recognized this distance would make it impossible for poll challengers
to perform their duties and could create a confrontational environment conducive to a law
enforcement intervention.

20. When I arrived home, I logged into the poll worker website. I noticed I had a new
message, dated October 13, 2020 01:13pm (95 minutes after the call I had taken the prior
morning). The message was sent from Yvonne Brookins with the subject line “STRIKE
TEAM.” The message contained credentials authorizing me to work as a “SUBSTITUE
POLLWORKER.” Under the “Work Assignment” tab, it now stated that my assigned job title
was “-EPI”. (Electronic Pollbook Inspector).

21. This meant I had been sent to the wrong training: I had attended the standard poll
worker training for ballot inspector and ballot box inspector. The Electronic Pollbook Inspector
was a different role: The EPI uses the laptop pollbook to process ballot applications and record
the issuing of ballots.

22. At approximately 5:00pm, I used the “Questions/Comments” tab to indicate that I
had taken the wrong training and asked about receiving the correct training. Shortly after
sending the message, it occurred to me that I might not receive a timely reply. I checked the
“Training” tab for a list of upcoming trainings. It displayed approximately ten events coming up
in the week ahead, but all of them were listed as “precinct chairperson training.” There were no

upcoming EPI trainings listed. I remembered from the initial phone call with the individual from
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the Department of Elections that trainings were going to be offered at the same times the
following day.

23. Therefore, on October 15, 2020 at 1:00pm, I returned to the same location to take
EPI training. The check-in attendant asked if she had seen me the day before. I told her I had
taken the wrong training and needed to take EPI training. For the same reasons as before, and
because I was taken aback by the comments the prior day, I recorded this training.

24, On October 15, 2020, the two trainers identified themselves as “Andrea and Miss
Tyra.” Andrea was wearing a City of Detroit employee uniform shirt with an embroidered

nametag identifying her as “A. Johnson.”

NV €1:%%:C 0202/9T7/11 DSIN Aq FATIDTI

25. The training began with a lecture regarding from Andrea. Miss Tyra took over
and lectured for the remainder of the training and discussed the use of the electronic pollbook
computers.

26. Most of the training consisted of basic instructions for performing the jobs we
were assigned. There were, however, moments I found remarkable.

27. I was instructed to tell poll challengers to stay away from me. An hour and thirty-
six minutes into the training, I heard the following exchange:

Miss Tyra: They have to wear a mask and they have to stay six feet. That's

important because they can come behind your table, but if you don't have

six feet, they can't come back there. [...] Any questions?

Trainee: So, if they're six feet back, they can't actually see.

Miss Tyra: Exactly! Unless they got reeeally good vision or they brought their
binoculars

[Laughter]
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Miss Tyra: Six feet. That's the rule, right? And you are entitled to your six feet!

28. Miss Tyra then encouraged poll workers to “call 9-1-17, “call the police on ‘em,”
and “have ‘em thrown up out of there.”

29. In both trainings, poll challengers were trained that poll workers could strictly
enforce social distancing rules that would prevent challengers from coming within six feet of
them,

30. On the October 15, 2020 EPI training, Miss Tyra indicated that she was happily
aware this would impede poll challengers’ ability to perform their duties.

31. Based on my observations with just signing up and being trained, I believe that
there was no way for a member of the general public to be reasonably expected to figure out how
to even apply to become a poll worker in the City of Detroit.

32. A Department of Elections official was unable to direct me to the online
application. After providing me a faulty web address, I was either incorrectly or falsely advised
that I could simply wait until the address would work.

33. 1 was only able to successfully apply to become a poll worker because I had been
given the link to the online application—an unlisted page on an unlisted website—by someone
“in the know.”

34, I still do not know why I received an email with the subject line “STRIKE
TEAM.”

35. As noted above, I attend two distinct training sessions: first for poll inspector;
then for electronic pollbook inspector (EPI). I audio-recorded the trainings of the October 14th

and October 15th, 2020; a true and correct copy of the recordings are attached.

NV €1:%%:C 0202/9T7/11 DSIN Aq FATIDTI

Appendix - 00122

I APP. 956



Case 1:20-cv-03791-JEB Document 5-6 Filed 12/22/20 Page 123 of 331

36. We were furnished printed packets of training materials. The October 14 training
packet is attached.

37. I am familiar that on October 16, 2020, the Secretary of State issued an updated
guidance document that stated:

“Challengers / Poll Watchers: While challengers’ [sic] and poll watchers’ [sic] have
their rights and responsibilities established under law, election workers can strictly
enforce requirements that they observe proper social distancing.” (“Polling Place
Safety and Accessibility”, Michigan Department of State, Bureau of Elections,
updated 10/16/2020) I do not know whether this guidance appeared in earlier versions
of the document.

38.  In both trainings, it was emphasized that, unlike prior elections, the City of
Detroit overstaffed and received more applications than needed. However, it was emphasized
that “many” of the Electronic Pollbook Inspectors were minors that would be unable to
discharge their duties to accompany the precinct chairperson to the Receiving Board.

39. In the October 14 training, this was noted in discussion of pay. Trainees were
informed that they could make an extra $50 if they joined the precinct chairperson in delivering
the critical election materials—including the poll book, the laptop, the results tapes, tabulator
SD cards, and of course, the transfer case containing the ballots-- “but I stress,” the trainer said,
“you can only do this if your EPI is a teenager. Many of our EPIs will be teenagers, who can’t
work until 2, 3 o’clock in the morning.” She then emphasized, however, that it was a lot of
work for little pay: the benefit of being a lowly ballot inspector is that you could go home as
soon as the polling place was closed. Those going to the Receiving Board could expect to be

there “all night”: 2:00am, 3:00am, or later.
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40. In the October 15 training, this was noted to inform the teenaged boys
constituting the majority of trainees that they needed to notify their precinct chairperson early
in the day if they were unable to deliver the materials to the Receiving Board (“because it’s
late, right?” not said: due to work restrictions on minors). They could be there as late as
1:00am, she warned them.

41. It seemed notable to me that, while on one hand it was so difficult to impossible
for members of the public to even find out how to apply, a large number of teenagers were
recruited to work the polls and assigned with particularity to be electronic pollbook inspectors.

42, On the applications to work for the City of Detroit, applicants were required to
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list party affiliation. “Independent” or “non-partisan” was not an option. Upon knowledge and
belief, clerks are required by law to hire an equal number of Democrat and Republican poll
workers. However, Michigan does not have partisan voter registration, so this process is subject
only to the affirmation of applicants, and minor employees being ineligible to vote would have
no record to check against anyhow.

43. In the October 14 training, it was emphasized that, although there would be
phone numbers to call for troubleshooting on Election Day, we would be unlikely to get
through to anyone. “Honestly speaking,” the trainer said, “it’s going to be hard to get ahold of
someone, because there’s going to be 10 people calling us at the same time.”

44, In the October 15 training, we were trained to deceive voters that were listed in
the poll book as having already voted absentee but who insisted they had not. We were advised
to issue them a provisional ballot “to quiet them down” that would not be tabulated but would
instead by destroyed by the Department of Elections.

45. The trainer said the following:
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Miss Tyra: There’s no reason for him to vote again. At all. Ever-- that day.
He’s done. But what if he gets what? Loud! Rude! (impersonating voter) “That’s

12

not me! I didn’t vote! I want to vote!” And just acts the purest, right? What can
you do, besides call your chairperson? That’s what you should do. Call your

chairperson. Your chairperson can issue him what type of ballot?
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Trainees: “Provisional!”

Miss Tyra: A provisional envelope! Why?

Trainees: “Because he wants to vote.”

Miss Tyra: But why a provisional envelope? Where’s it going? Not in the

tabulator! It’s going in that envelope, right? We have how many days? Six! So,

what is the Department of Elections going to do with it?

Trainees: Throw it out.
Miss Tyra: Destroy it! He’s already voted. The people are going to try to test
the system. And some of them are going to act the . . . and 9-1-1 is always an

option, right? It’s always your first option. But if they just insist, “that’s not me, I
didn’t do that, I don’t know who did that, that’s not me” that is an option. The last
resort is to call your chairperson, and have them do the envelope, vote it because that
quiets him down, that gets him out, and it doesn’t what? It doesn’t count. He doesn’t

know that, does he? Does he?

Trainees: No.
Miss Tyra: No. He doesn’t know that.
46. This training struck me because 1 was not apparent to what the “six” days

referred. This was a clear and specific directive to mislead a voter in the event that the voter was
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listed as having already voted absentee. While a voter that already voted absentee certainly
should not be allowed to vote a second time, it struck me that there was a distinct possibility that
an absentee ballot could be have stolen or the system was otherwise incorrect, and the proper
procedure would be for all provisional ballots to be carefully reviewed, not simply destroyed. I
would think all ballots, including rejected ballots, should not be destroyed in any event.

47. In the October 15 training, we were advised of the process for issuing ballots to
voters that were not listed in the poll book because they had only registered to vote in the past
three days pursuant to the new policy that eligible people could register to vote up to and on
Election Day. According to the training, the voter would “hopefully” have a receipt from the
clerk’s office indicating that he or she was a newly registered voter. As shown in the training
manual on Page 17, the receipt would either direct the poll workers to issue a regular ballot, or a
challenged ballot. No explanation was given as to why a voter would be given one or the other.
The sample receipts shown in the manual did not appear to include security devices of any kind.

48. It struck me that anybody could submit a forged document and be issued a regular
ballot, which once inside the tabulator would be anonymous and irrevocably counted. After the
training I asked other election officials if this was their policy as well. A township clerk, of
Oakland Township, told me that her staff were directed to call the clerk to verify these receipts.
The York Township clerk said she was embossing receipts with the township seal.

49. The Detroit officials gave no indication that any such safeguards would be in
place, and indeed, as noted above, we were actually advised that it would be difficult if not

impossible to get ahold of a higher-level election official for any reason.

10
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50.  Also, in the City of Detroit trainings, the description of the ballot challenge
process was bizarre both for what was said and what was unsaid. We were told that challenged
ballots were not to be separated into a challenged ballots envelope.

51. Instead, we were to write the ballot number on the stub onto the ballot itself,
cover up the ballot number with white Post-It tape, and feed the ballot into the tabulator. Upon
knowledge and belief, this was a statewide policy. Knowing that tabulated ballots are kept in a
locked transfer case that is only ever opened in the event of a recount, I concluded that all
challenged ballots are presumptively counted and could only be un-counted later in the event of a
recount.

52. What was unsaid in either training was when this should be done, other than in
the event described above where a voter presents a late registration directing us to process it as a
challenged ballot. In fact, we were advised in both trainings that poll challengers can challenge a
process or challenge a voter’s eligibility; however, it was indicated that unless we discovered an
error on our part, we were to disregard to the challenge and process the voter as normal.

53. I posted the complete audio recordings of both trainings and the training material
packets on the Web at: http://theadamd.com/affidavit/

54. The statements made at the training events compelled me to share this information
with others. I provided the recording to individuals who became plaintiffs in a lawsuit against the
Secretary of State and Director of Elections over the poll challenger social distancing
requirement. The case was 20-000211-MZ in the Court of Claims, filed on October 23.

55. An emergency motion for temporary restraining order was heard on Wednesday,
October 28. The hearing was published on the Court of Claims’ YouTube channel, on the web at

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wrosDhuGpYE. In the hearing, the parties announced that

11

NV €1:%%:C 0202/9T7/11 DSIN Aq FATIDTI

Appendix - 00127

I APP. 961



Case 1:20-cv-03791-JEB Document 5-6 Filed 12/22/20 Page 128 of 331

they had reached a settlement to change the policy to allow for poll challengers to come within
six feet of poll workers as needed to perform their duties. The settlement further stipulated that
the State would “provide this amended directive to local election officials in a manner most
likely to ensure timely receipt”. The proposed final order is attached.

56. I never told or trained that poll challengers could come within six feet to complete
their work.

57. On November 2, 2020, the day before the election, I logged into the poll worker
website to find that I was now assigned to be a ballot box inspector at Precinct 366 located at
Henderson Upper School at 16101 Chicago Street in Detroit. I wrote down the location but

neglected to record the precinct number, erroneously thinking the street address was sufficient.

ELECTION DAY NOVEMBER 3, 2020

58. When I arrived at the school at 5:45am, I discovered there were polling stations
set up for 5 precincts in the room. I located the polling site assessor, Caroline, who was in
charge of the entire location. She was too busy to speak to me. There was no sign-in sheet, no
list of who was assigned where, and nobody checked my credentials. After standing around
uselessly for about 5 minutes, I saw a sign for precinct 374, which sounded right to me, and
offered to help them set up. This precinct had two individuals, Eric and Keith, both serving as
precinct chairperson for the day. I was the only one in the group assigned to be ballot box
inspector, so I performed the job at that location for the entire day. At any rate, no other precinct

appeared to be short-staffed.

We were given nametag stickers to wear throughout the day. Some were blue and some were

red. While these were possibly intended to distinguish between Democrat and Republican poll

12
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workers here were no instructions to use them as such, nobody appeared to be aware of the rule
and it appeared that coworkers chose them randomly. The password for the tabulator was the
date: “11032020.” The passwords we used in our trainings had been the dates of prior
elections, e.g. “08042020.” I noted that the usage of the most obvious possible password,
which was printed on the laminated instruction sheet attached to the tabulator anyway,

essentially rendered this security device meaningless.

59. As we began processing voters, it became immediately obvious that there no

concern for voters’ privacy, neither from the staff nor the voters themselves. The secrecy
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sleeves for the ballots were several inches too short for the paper, so I invariably saw the top
few lines of every ballot as I tore off the stubs. About halfway through the day, we discussed
this, and Eric or Keith decided we should re-fold the sleeve to make it cover the front side at
the expense of coverage of the back, but ballots were often presented to me upside-down,

backwards, or outside the sleeve altogether.

60.  On at least three instances, voters would enter another’s voting booth to “help”
the voter. In two cases it was a wife helping a husband; in another it was a mother helping her

daughter.

61. In the second instance, the husband’s ballot was rejected by the tabulator, which
refused to accept any ballots with stray marks or incomplete ovals, resulting in the need to spoil
the ballot and issue a new one. After having spoiled the ballot, the wife, who had just
completed her own ballot, took the husband’s new ballot and simply completed the entire ballot

for him.

62. I asked our precinct chairpersons if it was proper for voters to be in others’

voting booths and, in that case, voting for him. I was advised that family members are
13
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permitted to help them vote. “Isn’t that a problem for voter privacy?” I asked. “What if
someone is being pressured by a family member to vote a certain way? Isn’t the whole point of
the privacy of a voting booth that a voter cannot feel pressured to vote a certain way?” They
acknowledged I had a point but were pretty sure about the policy and continued to allow family

members to “help” voters at their voting booths.

63. Almost every voter entering the polling site carried and displayed leaflets, some
for individual candidates and others that were “cheat sheet” instructions. We soon discovered

they were very frequently left inside the voting booths for the next voter to find and began
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checking after each voter to retrieve and throw out the campaign materials.

64. Upon taking my first break, I discovered that there were piles of campaign
literature at the windowsill in the hallway, in the bathroom, and on the table next to the
sanitation station. Outside the entrance, campaign workers were distributing the literature to

voters as they entered.

65. Unlike other locations I’ve worked in prior elections, there was no “100 foot”
marking cone to indicate the limit from the entrance where electioneering was allowed.
Furthermore, Michigan’s election law requires campaign workers to be 100 feet from all
building entrances, not just the main entrance, and the campaigners were less than 20 feet from

another building entrance and 10 feet directly in front of an exit.

66. I asked my precinct chairpersons about the voters displaying literature. “Isn’t
that inappropriate?” I asked. “Isn’t that no different from a voter displaying a candidate’s name

and logo on his shirt?” I was advised that it was not inappropriate.

67. Poll challengers arrived at our precinct at approximately 9:00am. We had

received no revised guidance with respect to the 6-foot rule having been amended by the
14
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Secretary of State, and nobody seemed aware of it. The poll challengers themselves spent most

of the day at the far end of the check-in table, which was less than 6 feet from the wall.

68. At approximately 3:00pm, our polling site was visited by Marian Sheridan of the
Michigan Republican Party who saw the campaign literature in the polling area and stated,
“They are not allowed to do that,” she said. Marian requested that the precinct chairperson note
in the poll book that most voters were displaying campaign materials inside the polling site,

which I believe he did.

69. We had at least one instance where I noticed a voter was issued a ballot who was
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not listed in the poll book. When I heard about this, I asked the Electronic Pollbook Inspector
what had happened. She indicated that she was able to verify the voter’s eligibility by visiting
the Secretary of State website (mi.gov/vote) on her phone and entered the voter’s information.
She represented that the voter was listed on the website as being registered in the precinct. She
said he was added to the poll book as a registered voter not in poll book and was given a

regular ballot.

70. After the polls closed at 8:00pm, we began shutting down the precinct and began
the process to close the ballot box. This involved connecting a modem to the machine to
transmit the results to the city and the county. The machine appeared to connect and transit the
results successfully to the Wayne County clerk’s office; however, it repeatedly failed to
transmit the results to the City of Detroit. We eventually gave up, reasoning that the tabulator

tapes would be delivered to the Receiving Board anyway.

71. Because I was working at the ballot box, I could not see how many voters
throughout the day had been listed as having already been issued absentee ballots. As we closed

the poll, I saw what appeared to be about 12 orange slips of paper that were affidavits that the
15
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voters did not have absentee ballots to surrender to the polling place. 199 people voted, and at
least 5% of those people had also received an absentee ballot. However, we received zero

returned absentee ballots.

72. Having worked in several elections in many counties in Michigan, it is my
opinion that certified fraud examiners are needed to audit this election, including but not

limited to the following anomalies:

a. Poll workers were trained to strictly enforce social distancing rules upon

challengers, contrary to a legal settlement, knowing challengers will not
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be able to view the processing and duplication of ballots.

b. Poll workers were advised to deceive voters who may have been subject
to errors or stolen ballots by issuing fake ballots that would be destroyed

by the Department of Elections.

c. The poll worker hiring process made it extremely difficult for the general
public to apply, and the high propensity of teenagers employed as
electronic pollbook inspectors and only electronic pollbook inspectors
strongly suggests that poll workers were recruited in an unknown but

clearly specific and possibly targeted manner.

d. Ballot privacy was completely disregarded throughout the precinct on

Election Day.

e. Prohibitions on electioneering within 100 feet of and inside polling

places were completely ignored.

f. Absentee ballots previously issued were not reclaimed.

16
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Adlim de Angell

On this \ Iwﬂu day of November, 2020, belore me personally appeared
Adam de Angeli, who in my presence did execute the loregoing
allidavit, aadd who, being duly sworn, deposes iand states that he has read
the forepoing altidavie by him subseribed and knows the contents
thereol, and that the same iy true ol his own knowledge and belief,
exvept as (o those matters he states (0 be on information and belief, and
as o those matters he believes them (o be (rue.

Name of Notary Public: S qne g0
o Oakland  County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: n-3p=3a

SHANE TREJO
Notary Pubile, $tare of Mighigan
County 01 Qakland v
My Commistitn Expiing 11:20-2022 fh.
Aoling 10 the Geunty of JAKEANP

Appendix - 00133

NV €1:%%:C 0202/9T7/11 DSIN Aq FATIDTI

I APP. 967



Eugene Dixon



Case 1:20-cv-03791-JEB Document 5-6 Filed 12/22/20 Page 113 of 331

Appendix - 00113

[ APP. 947



Case 1:20-cv-03791-JEB Document 5-6 Filed 12/22/20 Page 114 of 331

Appendix - 00114

I APP. 948



George Henderson



Braden Gaicobazzi



Case 1:20-cv-01083 ECF No. 1-2, PagelD.56 Filed 11/11/20 Page 23 of 234

AFFIDAVIT OF BRADEN GAICOBAZZI
Braden Gaicobazzi being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

1.I'am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

2.1 had the following experiences at TCF (COBO) Hall on 11/4/2020

3.1 expericnced: Intimidation countless times, persistent lics from some tablc
supervisors and managers regarding rules that prohibited me from doing my
job, and threats of assault. I was escorted from the room by police after about 9
or 10 hours of peacefully doing my job for simply standing my ground at a
table with people who were denying me access to see ballots and threatening
me. I did not resist police in any way and left peacefully.

4.1 saw an online note from someone within my GOP network of friends that
35,000 ballots had been received in the middle of the night and that they
needed poll watchers on November 4th. I arrived in the late morning to be
trained.

5.The first thing I noticed was that at least one person outside the ballot room
entrance had a BLM mask on. She appeared to be doing temperature checks.
Once inside, it was apparent that many and probably most tables in the room
were hostile towards people with GOP lanyards.

6.1 initially worked with an honest table, but after a few hours, I moved to
another table because we were low on GOP Challengers. This is because they
kept kicking out GOP challengers, using the police in the room to physically
remove them. In fact, early in the afternoon or later morning, someone came
into the room, made an announcement, and several people appeared to be
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removed from the room as the doors were locked and the windows were
boarded up with cardboard. I was informed that no GOP people were allowed
in and that, il we left, we could not get back in. I asked several of the
'independent' lawyers and law students who were acting as challengers and
nonc of them seemed to believe this to be an issue.

7.1 talked with several of these 'independent' lawyers/law students at length in
casual, friendly conversation and, based upon their answers to basic questions
about the news, it was evident that EVERY single one of the lawyers/law
students that I talked to was ideologically far-left, supporting things like
CHAZ/CHOP in Seattle and condoning the crime skyrocketing around the
country or wanting to work in Brooklyn because they support 'progressive'
changes (o law to 'not prosecute rioters,' etc. Yet, they all claimed to be
independent. Anyway, every time a GOP staffer was removed [rom the room,
most of the entire room would erupt in cheers and laughter and oftentimes
derogatory insults as GOP Challengers were walked out by police.

8.Throughout the day, I was on numerous occasions told that I was not allowed
within 6 [eet of the tables. I told them I had to step in for a moment for each
ballot to ensure that numbers or names matched and assured them that it would
be brief and that the lawyers said this was by lawful, but table supervisors and
their broader supervisors would often step in the way and prevent me from
seeing ballots while claiming I was trying to kill or endanger their ballot
counters with Covid. This was obviously incorrect and even when lawyers
would tell the whole table this, they would often argue with the lawyer. After
the lawyer would leave, sometimes the behavior would continue.

9.For much of the day I was with one good table. However, as the night drew
long I was bouncing between several tables, mostly near the back of the room,
because there were not enough GOP challengers remaining in the room and
many tables had no challengers watching them at all. At around 8pm at one of
the tables in the second-to-last row near the right corner, a specifically
cgregious moment occurred.
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10.The table was counting a stack of about 35 ballots that all appeared to have
pink challenge stickers on them. None of these ballots appeared to be in the
digital database of voters, so the people at the table were simply entering
names and addresses into the computer with birthdates of 1/1/1900.
personally was able to observe the 1/1/1900 birthdates on the computer. There
were also addresses and names which I could not verify because I wasn’t
allowed close enough to the table for long enough to compare anything. I told
the table I was challenging every one of these ballots. They laughed and said I
can't just do that. I then noticed that at least one of the ballots and envelopes
was mismatched based on the numbers. I waited to see if the table checker (at |
believe station 2) would catch this and he did not, so I spoke up requested that
the ballot be reviewed/challenged. I could not see any political affiliation
information on the ballot, including voting; just the numbers on the envelope
and ballot.

11.At some point, another GOP volunteer went to grab a lawyer for me because
a debate ensued over this. There weren't nearly enough lawyers in the room to
act on our behalf. When I would try to verify the names on the envelope or
check the ballot number against the envelope number to ensure everything was
okay, I was given the Covid runaround and separated from the table. (I cannot
tell you by whom because, throughout the day, I recall very few people at these
tables were ever willing to give me their name and party affiliation or even
their job title. Everyone else stonewalled and said I wasn't allowed to talk with
anyone at the table and that no one at those tables was required to tell me
anything, often including the table supervisors and their managers.

12.The table supervisor came over and began giving me the same speech and,
while I was politely telling him I was just doing my job, another GOP staffer
went to find a lawyer for me, In this time, the table swarmed with, I assume,
Democrat operatives getting very close to me and then yclling at me to back off
6 feet from him for Covid and complaining about the way I was wearing my
mask moving because [ was being forced to talk to him so much. The
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supervisors and table had no problem with these people being close to the table
and seemed to be familiar with one another, as though they were all on the
same team. The antagonistic staffers invented any kind of reason to prevent me
from doing my job and get me agitated. Finally, a lawyer showed up who told
them I was allowed to do my job; like other tables, they simply argued with
him as well. Having missed several ballots due to the arguing, I stepped in for a
moment to verify the next ballot number matched its envelope.

13.The table supervisor, his supervisor and several other operatives (none of
them would give their names or credentials) swarmed in and began
intimidating me. I was separated from the tablc at one point by the table
supervisor's supervisor and told to stand back. He stepped closer and closer to
me as I backed further away to the other side of the table. I asked him what his
name and job title was and he, along with the rest of the intimidators, refused
to give me any information. He made some kind of innuendo about ‘playing
with” him that made me uncomfortable and he then told me something to the
effect that he would either 'kick my ass or kick me out'.

14.In disbelief, I asked him if he was truly threatening me because I was just
doing my job. He repeated his mantras multiple times and called the cops over
and had me forcibly removed. The police questioned nothing and I didn't fight
them at all and left peacefully. However, I had to grab my coat and gave my
unfinished notes to another GOP volunteer, Andrew, so I do not have them as |
write this affidavit and don’t recall if I was able to write down the table number
of this final event of my evening. Once escorted out of the building, I held the
door for a brief moment to ask the police how to get to my car because I had no
idea where I was in relationship to the parking deck, and they said they had no
idea.
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15.As a final note, I did find it odd that, throughout the day/night, I saw a few
dozen military ballots be counted. Although I cannot provide specific numbers
or names, I can estimate that at least 80% of the military ballots I saw were
straight ticket democrat or simply had Joe Biden’s name filled in on them. I had
always been told that military personnel tended to be more conservative, so this
stuck out to me as the day went on.

Dated: November 8, 2020

Subscribed and sworn to before me on:

/s] OB ”o\/ém be~ 2220

Notary public, State of Michigan, County of:l()a\gne-

My commission expires: Dle — H{—222.2,
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AFFIDAVIT OF JANICE HERMANN

The Affiant, Janice Hermann, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1

My name is Janice Hermann. | am an adult citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.

I served and was trained to be a Republican challenger for the November 2020 election in
Detroit, Michigan at TCF Hall.

On November 4, 2020 upon arriving at TCF Hall, I noticed that the hall was very large with
hundreds of tables, but there were only a small number of Republicans challenger assigned
to tables.

Specifically, Republicans were not assigned to tables where election workers were
duplicating ballots. This process entails taking the original ballot and copying the votes by
hand on a new ballot so the ballot can be run through the tabulator.

The election supervisors and workers would not let Republican Challengers watch this
process or get close enough to see the process.

This was highly disturbing because the vote can simply be changed by hand and then run
through the tabulator. My understanding is that state law requires members of both parties
to witness the duplication process to ensure its integrity.

This did not occur.
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WREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER

10.

11.

12.
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I tried 1o observe the duplicati
pllcatlon proCCSS My pOlite eﬁ‘ e o
e WO rese : : orts were often met with hostility.
“Wa"“f?rkexs uld present their backs between me and the process going on, creating a

I -

ths::a]al ballot removed from the spoiled ballot box. As the election worker was duplicating

el ot, | asked to see 1t to make sure it was being duplicated properly. I was shown the
e O R away, too far for me to read it. Then, the ballot was quickly

5 I;losed of. As a challenger, it was literally my job that day to watch election processes

>UCh as this, but 1 was repeatedly disallowed from doing so and saw alarming acts of

Intimidation,

At one point, | saw a woman wield a letter opener as a weapon to make sure the observer

Was not close enough to see what she was doing as she duplicated ballots. This was also

.

Witnessed by my friend who was accompanying me, along with other observers.

At nlc; atlilme did I ever see an election worker or supervisor authenticate signatures to process
any ballots.

I saw election workers attributing names and birthdates to ballots that did not appear in the
computer system.

I saw the election workers repeatedly set aside ballots that did not appear on the voter list,
and I was given no indication of where they were taken and why.

I also saw election workers attribute ballots to very early birth years. Once I caught on that
this was occurring habitually, I noted one voter who was supposed to have been born on May
29, 1921, began voting on January 31, 1900, and registered to vote in Michigan in 2010.

I also noticed a very large number of voter registrations had taken place in September and
October, 2020.
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A. COSTANTINO and EDWARD P. AFFIDAVIT OF JESSY JACOB
McCALL, JR.,

Plaintiff, FILE NO: 20- -AW
-Vs- JUDGE

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION
COMMISSION; JANICE M. WINFREY, in
her official capacity as the CLERK OF THE
CITY OF DETROIT and the Chairperson of
the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION;
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official
capacity as the CLERK OF WAYNE
COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY

BOARD OF CANVASSERS,
Defendants.
/
David A. Kallman (P34200)
Erin E. Mersino (P70886)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551)
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622)

GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER
Attorneys for Plaintiff

5600 W. Mount Hope Hwy.
Lansing, MI 48917

(517) 322-3207/Fax: (517) 322-3208

AFFIDAVIT
The Affiant, Jessy Jacob, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

I. My name is Jessy Jacob. I am an adult citizen and resident of the State of Michigan.
2. Thave been an employee for the City of Detroit for decades.
3. I'was assigned to work in the Elections Department for the 2020 election.

4.  Ireceived training from the City of Detroit and the State of Michigan regarding the election

Process.

EXHIBIT 3
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13.
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I worked at the election headquarters for most of September and I started working at a

satellite location for most of October, 2020.

I processed absentee ballot packages to be sent to voters while I worked at the election
headquarters in September 2020 along with 70-80 other poll workers. I was instructed by my
supervisor to adjust the mailing date of these absentee ballot packages to be dated earlier
than they were actually sent. The supervisor was making announcements for all workers to

engage in this practice.

At the satellite location, I processed voter registrations and issued absentee ballots for people

to vote in person at the location.

I directly observed, on a daily basis, City of Detroit election workers and employees coaching
and trying to coach voters to vote for Joe Biden and the Democrat party. I witnessed these
workers and employees encouraging voters to do a straight Democrat ballot. I witnessed
these election workers and employees going over to the voting booths with voters in order to

watch them vote and coach them for whom to vote.

During the last two weeks while working at this satellite location, I was specifically
instructed by my supervisor not to ask for a driver’s license or any photo I.D. when a person

was trying to vote.

I observed a large number of people who came to the satellite location to vote in-person, but
they had already applied for an absentee ballot. These people were allowed to vote in-person
and were not required to return the mailed absentee ballot or sign an affidavit that the voter

lost the mailed absentee ballot.

Whenever 1 processed an absentee voter application or in-person registration, I was
instructed to input the person’s name, address, and date of birth into the Qualified Voter File

(QVF) system.

The QVF system can be accessed and edited by any election processor with proper

credentials in the State of Michigan at any time and from any location with internet access.

I worked at the satellite location until the polls closed on November 3, 2020 at 8:00 p.m. and
properly completed the entry of all absentee ballots into the QVF by 8:30 p.m.

EXHIBIT 3
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
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I then reported to work at the TCF Center on November 4, 2020, at 8:30 a.m. to process
ballots. I was instructed not to validate any ballots and not to look for any deficiencies in the

ballots.

Absentee ballots that were received in the mail would have the voter’s signature on the
envelope. While I was at the TCF Center, I was instructed not to look at any of the signatures
on the absentee ballots, and I was instructed not to compare the signature on the absentee

ballot with the signature on file.

All absentee ballots that existed were required to be inputted into the QVF system by 9:00
p.m. on November 3, 2020. This was required to be done in order to have a final list of
absentee voters who returned their ballots prior to 8:00 p.m. on November 3, 2020. In order
to have enough time to process the absentee ballots, all satellites were instructed to collect

the absentee ballots {from the drop-box once every hour on November 3, 2020.

On November 4, 2020, I was instructed to improperly pre-date the absentee ballots receive
date that were not in the QVF as if they had been received on or before November 3, 2020.
[ was told to alter the information in the QVF to falsely show that the absentee ballots had

been received in time to be valid. I estimate that this was done to thousands of ballots.

The above information is true to the best of my information, knowledge, and belief.

Further affiant says not. )
v

Jessy Jacob

On this 7th day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Jessy Jacob, who in

my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that she has read the foregoing affidavit by her subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and that
the same is true of her own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters she states to be on

information and belief, and as to those matters gﬂ?&%,
L

Stephen P. Kallman
Notary Public, Eaton County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: 11/26/2025
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AFFIDAVIT OF STEPHANIE KRAUSE

Stephanie Krause, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a witness,

am competent to testify to them as well,

I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

2.

3. I was a Republican Poll Challenger on November 4, 2020 at TCF Center in Detroit
Michigan.

4. I experienced intimidation the entire time from 8:30 am to 12:00pm., that I was on the
floor attempting to observe.

5. Any time I would approach a table to observe, Democratic poll challengers would block
the viewing; the Democratic challengers would try to distract us from observing the
information on the monitor.

6. I did attempt to speak with other Republican poll challengers to discuss how to effec-
tively observe, but we were told we could not converse amongst ourselves.

7. If masks of Republican poll challengers slipped off their noses, they were escorted from
the premesis, but if a Democratic poll challenger’s masked slipped, they were allowed
to stay.

8. As I was speaking with another Republican poll challenger, a woman suddenly appeared

and claimed the other Republican poll challenger was *‘harrassing™ her. He was not, he

was speaking to me. The police however came and escorted him away.

EXHIBIT 1



Case 1:20-cv-01083 ECF No. 1-2, PagelD.157 Filed 11/11/20 Page 124 of 234

9 [ left for lunch and was denied re-entry. 1 was never permitted re-entry. Democratic
poll watchers were permitted re-entry, but Republican poll challengers were told the
building was “at capacity”'.

10 After I was denied re-entry, 1 stayed in the lobby in case we could relieve other Repub-
lican poll challengers.

11.  No new Republican poll challengers were permitted to enter, but Democratic poll chal-
lengers were permitted to enter, as well as ACLU and press.

12. Around 2:30 or 2:40 in the afternoon, the poll workers took used pizza boxes and taped
them to the windows so no one could see what was occurring on the floor.

13 I was effectively prevented to poll watch or challenge. It was literally impossible to
observe or make challenges. When I inquired as to why my challenges were not ac-
cepted, | was told the rules “no longer applied”.

14

[ left the TCF Center at approximately 6:30pm on November 4, 2020

15. Dated: November 8, 2020

Stephanie Krause

‘/‘:LQ.P‘/L& L ‘Q \<T" DL D
Subscribed and sworn to before me on: o —
151 CE3 NE\/‘embe(‘ 2020

Notary public. State of Michigan. Counly of:

My commission cxpircs:o(‘ -l‘/" a2,
Lritmo
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AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID LANGER

DAVID LANGER being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2. I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3. AT TCF on Wednesday arrived at approx. 12:30 pm prohibited entry to the counting

floor. Told to wait. Kept door closed. Waited until approx. 10:30 pm when returned home.

Dated: November 8, 2020

Dav Langer
D viD LAVSGER

586 214-5507

)
Subscribed and sworn 10 before me on: |/ , %’/ Fodo /0 9/2,02_ <

Notary public, State gan, County of:

My commission expires

12 |2054

Notary Public State of Michigan
County of Wayne
My Commission
in the County
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A. COSTANTINO and EDWARD P. AFFIDAVIT OF ZACHARY
McCALL, JR., LARSEN
Plaintiff,
FILE NO: 20- -AW
_VS_
JUDGE

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION
COMMISSION; JANICE M. WINFREY, in
her official capacity as the CLERK OF THE
CITY OF DETROIT and the Chairperson of
the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION;
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official
capacity as the CLERK OF WAYNE
COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY

BOARD OF CANVASSERS,
Defendants.
/
David A. Kallman (P34200)
Erin E. Mersino (P70886)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551)
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622)

GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER
Attorneys for Plaintiff

5600 W. Mount Hope Hwy.
Lansing, MI 48917

(517) 322-3207/Fax: (517) 322-3208

AFFIDAVIT
The Affiant, Zachary Larsen, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1. My name is Zachary Larsen, I am over the age of eighteen, have personal
knowledge of the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a witness, [ am competent to testify

to these facts.
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2. I am an attorney in private practice and licensed in the State of Michigan. Prior to
my entry into private practice, I served as an Assistant Attorney General for eight years from
January 2012 through January 2020, where I was recognized with an award for the quality of my
work and served the state on several high-priority litigation matters.

3. In September 2020, I volunteered to serve as a poll challenger for the Michigan
Republic Party’s election day operations to ensure the integrity of the vote and conformity of the
election process to the election laws of Michigan.

4. In preparation for my service, I attended an elections training, reviewed materials
relating to the conduct of elections, and read pertinent sections of Michigan’s election law.

5. On Election Day, Tuesday, November 3, 2020, I served as a roving attorney and
credentialed poll challenger with a group of attorneys and visited approximately 20-30 voting
precincts in Lansing, East Lansing, and Williamston, Michigan to confirm that the election was
conducted in accordance with law, and on a few occasions, to address complaints raised by specific
voters.

6. During my visits to precincts on Election Day, I was allowed to visually inspect the
poll book without touching it at every precinct where we asked to review it. In each instance, [ was
allowed to stand a respectful distance behind the election officials while remaining close enough
to read relevant names and numbers.

7. The following day, on Wednesday, November 4, 2020, I arrived at the former Cobo
Center, now known as the TCF Center, in Detroit, Michigan to serve as a poll challenger for the

absent voter count occurring in Detroit and arrived between 9:30 and 9:45 a.m.
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8. Prior to my admission to the floor where the absent voter count was occurring, I
received credentials from the Michigan Republican Party and further instruction regarding the
process for handling ballots at absent voter counting boards (“AVCBs”).

0. Thereafter, I received a temperature scan from election officials that confirmed I
did not have an elevated temperature. I arrived inside, and I was “checked in” by an election
official who reviewed my driver’s license and confirmed my credentials and eligibility to serve as
a challenger. I was admitted at approximately 10:30 a.m.

10. When I arrived at a counting table and began to observe the process, I noticed
immediately that part of the process that was being implemented did not conform to what I had
been told in my training and the materials that I had received.

11. Specifically, the information I had received described the process that was
supposed to be occurring at the tables as follows.

12. A first election official would scan a ballot. If the scan did not confirm a voter in
the poll book, that official would then check the voter against a paper copy “supplemental poll
book.”

13. The official would then read the ballot number to a second election official and
hand the ballot to that official, who would remove the ballot (while still in the secrecy sleeve) and
confirm the ballot number. That second official would then hand the ballot (in the secrecy sleeve)
to a third official who would tear the stub off of the ballot, and place the stub in a ballot stub
envelope, then pass the remaining ballot to a fourth official.

14. The fourth official would then remove the ballot from the secrecy sleeve, flatten
the ballot to ensure it was capable of processing, and visually inspect for rips, tears, or stains before

placing the ballot in the “ballots to be tabulated box.” However, if that fourth official identified a
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concern, she would place the ballot back in its envelope and into a “problem ballots” box that
required additional attention to determine whether they would be processed and counted. A copy

of a diagram that I had received on this process is attached as Exhibit A to this affidavit.

15. What I observed immediately was that the secrecy of the ballot was not being
respected.
16. Instead, the second official at the table where I was observing was repeatedly

placing her fingers into the secrecy sleeve to separate the envelope and visually peek into the
envelopes in a way that would allow her to visually observe the ballot and identify some of the
votes cast by the voter.

17. Sometimes, the third official whose job was merely to remove the stub from the
ballot would likewise remove the ballot from the secrecy sleeve or otherwise peek to observe the
ballot. Sometimes a ballot would be removed completely from the secrecy sleeve and then placed
back inside and passed along this process.

18. I conferred regarding this issue with another challenger at a nearby table, and he
indicated he had observed similar irregularities regarding the use of the secrecy sleeves.

19. When that challenger raised the issue with a supervisor, and he was immediately
asked “why does it matter?” and “what difference does it make?”

20. Beyond the legal requirements for maintaining ballot secrecy, both of us were
concerned that the violations of the secrecy of the ballot that we witnessed could be or were being
used to manipulate which ballots were placed in the “problem ballots” box.

21. Later that morning, at another table, a challenger identified concerns that ballots
were being placed into “problem ballots” boxes purportedly based on the reason that the voter had

failed to place the ballot in the secrecy sleeve, while other ballots at the same table were being
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passed along and placed into the “ballots to be tabulated” box that also did not have secrecy
sleeves.

22. I personally observed that several ballots were placed into the “problem ballots”
boxed and marked with a sticky note indicating that they were “problem ballots” merely because
of the lack of a secrecy sleeve.

23. When I spoke with a supervisor regarding this issue, he explained that these ballots
were being placed in the “problem ballots” box for efficiency.

24. From my experience at the first table I had visited (addressed in Paragraphs 15
through 17 above), I had also witnessed ballots that were placed into the “ballots to be tabulated”
box that had arrived without a secrecy sleeve. So the differentiation among these ballots despite
both ballots arriving in secrecy sleeves was perplexing and again raised concerns that some ballots
were being marked as “problem ballots” based on who the person had voted for rather than on any
legitimate concern about the ability to count and process the ballot appropriately.

25. Just before noon, I arrived at another table (which I later contemporaneously noted
as AVCB # 23), and I conferred with the Republican challenger who had been observing the
process from a viewing screen and watching the response of the computer system as ballots were
scanned by the first official.

26. I asked the challenger if she had observed anything of concern, and she immediately
noted that she had seen many ballots scanned that did not register in the poll book but that were
nonetheless processed. Because she needed to leave for lunch, I agreed to watch her table.

27. As I watched the process, I was sensitive to her concern that ballots were being
processed without confirmation that the voter was an eligible voter in the poll book, so I stood at

the monitor and watched.
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28. The first ballot scanned came in as a match to an eligible voter. But the next several
ballots that were scanned did not match any eligible voter in the poll book.

29. When the scan came up empty, the first official would type in the name “Pope” that
brought up a voter by that last name.

30. I reviewed the running list of scanned in ballots in the computer system, and it
appeared that the voter had already been counted as having voted. Then the first official appeared
to assign a number to a different voter as I observed a completely different name that was added
to the list of voters at the bottom of a running tab of processed ballots on the right side of the
screen.

31. That same official would then make a handwritten notation on her “supplemental
poll book,” which was a hard copy list that she had in front of her at the table.

32. The supplemental poll book appeared to be a relatively small list.

33. I was concerned that this practice of assigning names and numbers indicated that a
ballot was being counted for a non-eligible voter who was not in either the poll book or the
supplemental poll book. From my observation of the computer screen, the voters were certainly
not in the official poll book. Moreover, this appeared to be the case for the majority of the voters
whose ballots I had personally observed being scanned.

34, Because of this concern, I stepped behind the table and walked over to a spot
behind where the first official was conducting her work.

35. Understanding health concerns due to COVID-19, I attempted to stand as far
away from this official as I reasonably could while also being able to visually observe the names

on the supplemental poll book and on the envelopes.
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36. Partly inhibiting my ability to keep a distance, the tables were situated so that two
counting tables were likely a maximum of eight feet apart. In other words, you could not stand
more than four feet behind one without being less than four feet from another.

37. As soon as [ moved to a location where I could observe the process by which the
first official at this table was confirming the eligibility of the voters to vote, the first official
immediately stopped working and glared at me. I stood still until she began to loudly and
aggressively tell me that I could not stand where I was standing. She indicated that I needed to
remain in front of the computer screen.

38. I responded, “Ma’am, I am allowed by statute to observe the process.” As I did, a
Democratic challenger ran towards me and approached within two feet of me, saying “You cannot
speak to her! You are not allowed to talk to her.” I responded, “Sir, she spoke to me. I was just
answering her.”

39. The first official again told me that the only place I was allowed to observe from
was at the computer screen. A second official at the table reiterated this. I said that was not true.

40. Both officials then began to tell me that because of COVID, I needed to be six feet
away from the table. I responded that I could not see and read the supplemental poll book from six
feet away, but I was attempting to keep my distance to the extent possible.

41. Just minutes before at another table, a supervisor had explained that the rules
allowed me to visually observe what I needed to see and then step back away. Likewise, on
Election Day, I had been allowed to stand at equivalent distance from poll books in Lansing and
East Lansing precincts without any problem. With this understanding, I remained in a position
where [ would be able to observe the supplemental poll book until I could do so for the voter whose

ballots had just been scanned and did not register in the poll book.
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42. Both officials indicated that I could not remain in a position that would allow me
to observe their activities and they were going to get their supervisor.

43. This seemed particularly concerning because the Democratic challenger who raised
concerns over my verbal response to the official had been positioned behind the second official
(the one who confirms ballots as described in Paragraph 13) no further away than I was from the
first official at that time and had not been stationed at the computer screen as the officials
repeatedly told me was the only place that I could stay.

44. When the supervisor arrived, she reiterated that I was not allowed to stand behind
the official with the supplemental poll book, and I needed to stand in front of the computer screen.
I told her that was not true, and that [ was statutorily allowed to observe the process, including the
poll book.

45. The supervisor then pivoted to arguing that I was not six feet away from the first
official. I told her I was attempting to remain as far away as I could while still being able to read
the names on the poll book.

46. In an attempt to address her concerns, I took a further step away from the table and
indicated I would try to keep my distance, and that I thought I was about six feet away from the
first official. The supervisor then stood next to the chair immediately to the left of the first official
and indicated that I was “not six feet away from” the supervisor and that she intended to sit in the
chair next to the official with the poll book, so I would need to leave.

47. This supervisor had not been at the table at any time during the process, and she
had responsibility for numerous ACVBs. Further, the supervisor’s choice of chairs was
approximately three feet to the left of the first official and therefore in violation of the six-foot

distance rule.
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48. Accordingly, I understood that this was a ruse to keep me away from a place where
I could observe the confirmation of names in the supplemental poll book. The supervisor began to
repeatedly tell me that I “needed to leave” so I responded that I would go speak with someone else
or fill out a challenge form.

49. I went to find another attorney serving as a challenger and returned to discuss the
matter further with the supervisor. When I returned, she reiterated her assertions and insisted that
there was nowhere where I could stand in conformity with the six-foot rule that would allow me
to observe the supplemental poll book. Ultimately, to avoid further conflict with the supervisor, I
agreed that [ would leave that counting table and move to another table.

50. Between 1:30 p.m. and 2 p.m., my colleague and I decided to return to the suite that
housed the Republican challengers to get lunch. We left the counting floor and went up to the
Republicans second-floor suite.

51. About 30 to 45 minutes later, an announcement was made that challengers needed
to return to the floor. As we attempted to return, we were made aware that the officials admitting
people had limited the number of election challengers to another 52 people who would be allowed
inside. I displayed my credentials and walked up to near the door where a small crowd was
gathering to be let in.

52. Shortly thereafter, a man came out to announce that no one would be let in (despite
the prior announcement) because the room had reached the maximum number of challengers. As
he was asked why we would not be let in, he explained that the maximum number of challengers
were determined from the number of names on the sign-in sheet, regardless of how many people

had left the room.
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53. Many Republican challengers had left the room for lunch without signing out,
including myself and my colleague. Accordingly, we were being arbitrarily “counted” towards this
capacity limitation without actually being allowed into the room to observe.

54. When challengers raised this issue with the man at the door, he refused to discuss
any solutions such as confirming the identify of challengers who had been previously admitted.

55. To the best of my recollection, I was never informed that if I left the room and
failed to sign out that I would be refused admission or that there would be no means of confirming

that I had been previously admitted.

56.  The above information is true to the best of my information, knowledge, and belief.
57.  Further affiant says not. W %/
Zag ha L\sen

On this 8th day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Zachary Larsen, who
in my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that he has read the foregoing affidavit by his subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and that
the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters he states to be on
information and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true.

St —

Stephen P. Kallman
Notary Public, Eaton County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: 11/26/2025
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

ANGELIC JOHNSON and SARAH

STODDARD,
No. 1:20-cv-1098
Plaintifts,
Hon. Janet T. Neff
V.

JOCELYN BENSON, in her official capacity
as Michigan Secretary of State; and
JEANNETTE BRADSHAW, in her official
capacity as Chair of the Board of State
Canvassers for Michigan,

Defendants.

DECLARATION OF JOHN McGRATH

1, John McGrath, make this declaration under 28 U.S.C. § 1746 and based on my personal
knowledge and upon information and belief where noted.

1. [ am an adult citizen of the United States and a resident of Michigan.

2, I volunteered to be an election challenger for a non-partisan group for the
November 2020 election.

3. On Wednesday, November 4, 2020, 1 worked at the TCF Center in Detroit.

4. At around 3:00am, tens of thousands of absentee ballots arrived from Wayne
County. Upon information and belief, these ballots were received after the election deadline
of 8pm on November 3, 2020.

5. During the counting of these ballots, and the ballots I observed being counted
on November 4, 2020 until the time I left at 9:30pm, I saw numerous ballots assigned to

“Unlisted Voters.”
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6. Unlisted Voters are ballots with names of people not registered on any absentee
voter list and yet these ballots were all being counted the same as those voters who were
registered.

7. The Unlisted Voters had no dates of birth in the system in contrast to the
registered voters who already had Dates of Birth either the electronic poll book or on the paper
suppiemental sheets.

8. Workers continually entered the default Date of Birth, January 1, 1900, into the
computer system in order to process these votes.

9. There were an inordinate number of Unlisted Voter ballots.

NV €1:%%:C0202/97/11 DSIN Aq AAATIDTI

10. 1 witnessed election supervisors lock volunteers and republican challengers out of
the counting room at TCF Center.

11. T was able to enter the counting room at around 6:30 pm.

12. 1 saw ballots being processed for Absent Voter Counting Board (AVCB) #73
without any election challengers present. AVCB #73 had nearly completed their work when
I reached their table.

13.  Ichallenged three of the last few ballots that were being processed.

14.  The Election Supervisor of AVCB #73 asked me why 1 was challenging the initial
ballot. Iinformed her that it is an "Unlisted Voter" who is not registered on either the electronic
nor paper list/roll of registered voters. She said, "Ok" and instructed the poll worker at the
laptop computer to make note of the challenge for that ballot. I also wrote down the names on
the ballots and the ballot numbers I challenged on my report.

15. Since there were no more ballots at County Board #73 at that time, I locked

around for another table working on ballots. I eventually noticed another AVCB where
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election workers were again processing ballots with no election challengers present. This
table was AVCB #56.

16. I went over to the monitor to seec what AVCB #56 was working on and saw they
were processing the ballot for yet another “Unlisted Voter.” I immediately informed the
Supervisor that I was challenging this ballot. She asked why, and I told her.

17.  While I talked with the Supervisor, the poll worker started working on the next
ballot which was another “Unlisted Voter.” 1 informed the Supervisor that I was challenging

this ballot too for the same reason. Then the next ballot was also “Unlisted Voter,” and 1

NV €1:9%:C0202/97/11 DSIN A9 AIATADTY

informed the Supervisor again that I was challenging this ballot.

18,  The Supervisor then told me that T don't have to keep telling her I am
challenging each ballot and that she would note that I am challenging these and all subsequent
“Unlisted Voter” ballots. T affirmed to her my challenge of all “Unlisted Voter” ballots for
this AVCB. She said she would have this noted.

19.  Although the Supervisor agreed to do this, I continued to write down the names
and numbers of “Unlisted Voter” ballots that kept appearing. While doing so, 1 was
approached by a woman who asked why I was challenging these ballots. I asked who she was,
and she identified herself as a Democrat election challenger. I told her the reason why I was
challenging all the “Unlisted Voter” ballots for AVCB #56. She started telling me why she
thought the ballots should be processed but while I listened to her, I missed the ballot number
of the next “Unlisted Voter.” [ asked the Supervisor for this number since the last two digits
of the ballot numbers were hidden on the computer monitor. The Supervisor refused to tell me
the ballot number that I had missed.

20.  *“Unlisted Voter” ballots kept appearing, one after the other.
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21.  Itried to notate the ballots, but [ was again approached by a man in a business
suit who introduced himself as a lawyer with the Democrat party. The man asked how [ was
credentialed. Iexplained that I was with a non-partisan group. He then told me that the challenges
I was making will not amount to anything. These two individuals tried to engage me in
conversation in an effort to distract me from notating the “Unlisted Voter” ballots that poil workers
were processing very quickly.

22. At this point, I had noted approximately two dozen “Unlisted Voter” ballots that were

processed at AVCB #56. 1 was again approached by a challenger with the Democrat party. She asked
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me who [ was with, T explained that I was with a non-partisan group. She then accused me of being a
Republican. It was another attempt to engage me in conversation and distract me from documenting
challenges.

23. A large number of ballots were being processed very quickly, so it was impossible for me
to catch all “Uniisted Voter” ballots.

24.  Ido recall clearly that one of the “Unlisted Voter” ballots at this AVCB came
from Saginaw, Michigan which is not even in Wayne County.

25. When AVCB #56 got to the end of processing these ballots, I noted that the
total number of ballots processed was 1,454.

26.  Dueto COVID-19 regulations, I stood far away from the table with the election workers
and the table supervisor would not let me use the comer of the table nearest me to write on. However, I
frequently saw the Supervisor standing closer to the poll workers than I would have been had she let me
use the corner of the table nearest me to write on.

27.  Inhindsight, I question whether my challenges of “Unlisted Voters” for AVCB

#56 were notated as the Supervisor indicated they would be.
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28.  If they were not notated as the Supervisor indicated they would be, it means my
challenges were not handled in good faith.

29.  The above information is true to the best of my information, knowledge, and belief.

N M7

On this % ?ay of November, 2020, before me personally appeared John McGrath, who
in my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that he has read the foregoing affidavit by him subsctibed and knows the contents thereof, and that
the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters he states to be on
information and belief, and as to these matters he believes them to be true.

30. Further affiant says not.

CONSUELA MAYS
NOTARY PUBLIC - MICHIGAN

o E CONTY -
OMMISSION EXPIRES APRIL 01, 2025
v /@’M/ ACTING IN WAYNE COUNTY

7

-~

Notary Public, Obkdand County, Michigan
My Commission Expires: _Apni !, 2028~

N\ R

Frgfh
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AFFIDAVIT OF MORDECHAI MANDELBAUM

Mordy Mandelbaum, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2. [ am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3. I was a credentialed Republican challenger at Cobo Hall Tuesday night, November 3
and Wednesday, November 4,

4, I observed a poll worker completing a ballot without a spoiled ballot present. I asked:
“[w]hat are you doing?” The poll worker did not respond.

3. I believe poll workers were duplicating ballots to incorrect precincts in order to run
two ballots through for the same person. This was very common throughout the night.
I observed this approximately 20-30 times at the table [ was watching.

6. Duplicate of ballot #00239 at Table AVCB 8 ( ballot # 01570) was duplicated to the
wrong ballot. The poll worker brought a precinct #6 ballot instead of the correct
precinct. The new duplicate ballot was # 01571. Because of this suspected mismatch, I

asked to see these ballots side by side and was denied access to view these ballots.
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7 I spoke to a fellow challenger, who overheard poll workers talking about ganging up
on her by strongly discouraging her to challenge.

8 An absentee ballot challenger representing the Democratic party approached me and
asked if T wanted her to relieve me since “we are here for the same job” and then
proceeded to tell me that she was going to go back to watching me. I replied that we

were here to watch the ballots and not the other challengers.

Dated: November 8, 2020

Mordechai Mandelbaum
Mo cdectar pan 2eibeum

November 8, 26 20
Notary public, State of Michigan, Cou
My commission expires: 26
2.
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AFFIDAVIT OF WHITNEY MEYERS

Whitney Meyers, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a

witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2 On November 3, 2020 | was stationed as a volunteer for the Republican Party outside
of the Detroit Department of Elections at 2978 W. Grand Blvd. I was there three times
throughout the day. To the best of my recollection | was there from approximately

7:30am to 9:00am, from approximately 11:00am to 2:00pm and from approximately

6:45pm to 8:20pm.

3 On the street in front of the Department | witnessed workers with “Detroit Elections”
aprons on collecting ballots from cars. 1 witnessed multiple drivers in cars drop off

multiple ballots, including more ballots than people in the car.

4 I also witnessed workers with “Detroit Elections” aprons handing t-shirts and food
into cars dropping off ballots. The (-shirts appeared to be from a non-profit voting

advocacy group.

5 At 8:00pm workers from the Detroit Department of Elections locked the front door of

the office, said they were accepting no more ballots and ceased to collect ballots from

cars.
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6 There was a ballot drop box in front of the Department of Elections office. After
8:00pm and after workers of the Detroit Department of Elections announced they were
accepting no more ballots I witnessed an individual place ballots into the drop box
before workers from the Detroit Department of Elections had a chance to place a lock

on it. Nothing was done to find or separate these ballots.

7 As workers from the Detroit Department of Elections were retrieving ballots from the
drop box after 8pm and after it was announced that they were no longer accepting
ballots, I witnessed a worker from the Detroit Department of Elections named
“Travis” accept a ballot from a woman on the street and place it with the other ballots.

[ confronted him about this, but he did not remove the ballot.

Dated: November 7, 2020

Is/

Su and swom to before me on MM%

Notary public. State of Michigan, Cou

of:
My commission expires: ’C(’ZO’Zé;

LESLIE
Notary Public,
County

My Commission
in the County
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Village Health

Urgent and Family Care
12150 30 Mile Rd. Washington, MI 48065 PH: (586) 752-7256 FAX: (586) 331-2323
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DATE: [|- 70 = 2020

ATTN: _ £ 0]

FAXNUMBER:  fuy - #49- 1405

e LEFpMITS — Phieil w cywthif O WALLOLAN

NUMBER OF PAGES, INCLUDING COVER: 15 iMerwoint coven.
SHEET .

NV €1:%%:C 0202/97/11 DOSIN A4Q AIATADA

COMMENTS:

Foom: PHIC O'#Awomrxj A4¥- 200 0S5 L2
VOAtEipen T = Phnad 4. 0"//#&&0/2/9"'/ "3 £55
8 SHEMENT - Phieif g o' Wheepunr) ~ o P355-
) DECANATION PR, o M. 0! oRAN - 5?34.
if) plkeAND C00NTY pBiERVATIp - CyVTHIA O'Hatoetrd -~ Zp9s.
S) STHTEMENT - gamneirg, CyNTHm O'HAvoear - Zps.

Thane ypt /

Confidentiality statement:

The attached infarmation is CONFIDENTIAL and is protected under the Privacy Act of 1974. It is intended for the
use of the addressee(s) identified above. This faxed material must be destroyed appropriately when its use is no
longer required. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient(s) or the employee or agent respoensible
for delivering the attached information to the intended recipients(s), piease note that any dissemination
distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Anyone wha receives this communication on
error should rotify Village Health immediately and return the original message to the address as the top of the
cover sheet via LS. mail.
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Af'fldawt of Phlllp M O’Halloran
Pl‘lll[p M. O’Halloran belng sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I Philip M. O’ Halloran a register voter in and citizen of the State of Michigan make the following
staterment of record. -

Re: Movements of white Panske maving truck an November 4%,

At 3:15 prn on November 4™, | spoke with Andre Gilbert.on the floor of the TCF Center. He is an
official working for the Department of Elections, who assured me that there would be no further
ballots brought over from the Department of Elections or anywhere else. | asked if all the drop
boxes had been emptied and ballots had been brought to the TCF Center. He answered that they
had, | asked if the drop boxes were still capable of having ballots placed inside, and he said that
they-had been locked and-that they were scheduled to be pulled off the streets in a few days. |
asked if any ballot was found at the postal service and delivered late, wauld it be counted and he
said ebsolutely not”.

NV €1:9%:C 0202/97/11 OSIN A4Q QAATADTY

At approximately 5:30pm on Wednesday, November 4%, 2020, | drove to the alley off 379 Avenue
due south of West Grand Blvd and due west of the Detroit Department of Elections {DOE). | was
with three other people who were Republican election observers watching the alection-related
activities outside the Department of Elections. . :

We observed the comings and goings in the alley-for several minutes when | remmarked to the
others that there was a white Penske Truck parked on 3™ Avenue and pointing in the direction of
West Grand Blvd., that was similar, if not identical, to the one that we’d seen transporting pallets
of completed 2020 General Election ballots from DOE to the TCF AV Counting Board.

Several mmutes Iater 1 notlced that there was a heavy duty: Whlte pickup truck behind the
white Penske truck and inside there were two heavy set black males in their twenties whe

appeared to be watching the Penske truck; They were just sitting idle, not doing anything but
Iooklng straight ahead at the truck.

Our group decnded to depart the area, but before [ left, | walked south along 3"‘ Ave. to the
light/stop sign? and crossed aver 1o the side of the street where the Penske (lic plate 2352303)
and plckup (City of Detroit #186227) were parked .

I then photogra phed the truck and the passenger side of the pickup, which had both its passenger
side wheels on the sidewalk, the same as did the Penske truck and another, white pickup further
down the street toward West Grand Blvd. (see photo).
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| walked around the front of the pickup and politely addressed the two occupants “excuse me,
I’'m doing some election observing. Could you tell me what's in the truck right there? Are there
any ballots in there?”. The driver responded "No, it's empty”. | left the area shortly afterward.

Later in the evening, | returned with my wife, Cindy at approximately 9:30 pm, at which time we
noted that both the Penske truck and the pickup truck were still in the same location and,
notably, the two occupants were also still seated in the pickup. We suspected that they had been
thare for the past four hours or mere and wondered why they were essentlally guarding an empty
delivery truck into the night hours. e e
My wife and | left the area and proceeded to TCF Center, where we attempted to enter to
perform challenger duties for the GOP, but were denied entri‘to the bwldlng by security, We [eft
soon after this and decided to drive back to the DOE. As we approachéd, we witnessed the
white Penske truck driving West on first W. Milwaukee Avenue and then West Grand Blvd. We
surmised that it had turned into the alley behind the DOE, possibly picked up a load at the
building’s rear loading area and then turned right onto 2" Avenue, and right onto W- Milwaukee,
The white pickup was no longer present. We followed the Penske truck from a distance down the
Lodge Freeway and onto Steve Yzerman Drive and watched it slowly back into one of the service
entrances behind the TCF Center and, after several minutes, it disappeared inside the TCF Center
{see photos and video),
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At this time, we proceeded to the front of TCF and managed to enter the building. We went down
the stairs to the entrance to the AV Counting Board where we were denied entry by members of
a 6-8-person Special Operations team of tactical Detroit Police officers led by a Sgt. Barrick. After
what was, at times, a heated discussion between the election authorities who barred our entry
and a GOP official named Brian Szmytke and an ensuing more civil discussion with the police and
later Sgt. Barrick, | informed the Sergesant of my concerns that the white Penske truck MAY be
delivering ballots to the TCF Center, which we had observed it doing on at least one occasion
prior to Eiection Day. | explained that the truck would enter through the garage door (sally port)
at the rear of the TCF Counting Board room. | added that, if there are ballots in the truck, and if
they arrived after the close of the polls at 8 pm on November 3, that such delivery and
subseduent counting of these late ballots would be a crime (see video),

The sergeant agreed to look into it but admitted that he would not be searching the truck himself,
but rather would refer it to Detroit police investigators. | asked how soon that could take place.
He didn’t answer definitively. At this point, Mr. Szmytke, asked the sergeant if he could check to
see if the truck was inside the building as | had claimed. Sgt, Barrick agreed to do this. | then
proceeded to my car and drove again to the rear of the TCF Center on Steve Yzerman Drive to
confirm that the truck was not leaving. | watched if for perhaps haif an hour and then left the

area. | was unable to learn what the sergeant found, if anything, regarding the
white Panske truck,

Signature page attached
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Affidavit of Philip M. O’Halloran

Signature page

pated [WVe-b )/, 12020 / Z/ / MM/)

Philip M Q’Halloran

Subscrib d sworn to before fne on mﬂ\fﬂn}vr CQ OJ.)D CQD &5
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DL L A MMM A 12
Nota‘hr-PﬂJhc State of Michigan, County of (G ¥ a0 fL

My Commission Expires: __{ -~ 20~ dﬂb%{

CATHERINE SWETICH
Nuwy Pub!u:. state of Miehlgan

My Gemmmmn? Dac
{_ Acting it Gountyof (31l Agng |
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Statement of Philip M. (’Halloran regarding observations on October 8%, 2020

1, Phlllp M. O’Halloran, a Republican was performlng volunteer election observatlons wnth my
wife, Cynthia O’Halloran, outside the Adams Butzell Detroit Absent Voter Satellite Center at
10500 Lyndon 5t. on the above date.

We entered the facility and spoke for a while with two election workers there This went
smoathly and we returned to our car. While | was observing the surveillance camera systern
outside, my wife and | noted a.young lady; who looked to be between the ages of 18 and. 23,
walk from her car in front of us toward the facility’s entrance. She was openly carrying 3 ballots
as if she was dropping them off inside. Several moments later she.came out of the building
(without the ballots) and returned to her car. My wife noted several dreadlocks throughout her
hair and she had khaki pants and a light pastel button down blouse, She appeared to have a
Millato complexion and a bigger-boned body appearance,

Less than an hour later, after we had left the above facility and gone to Northwest Activity
Center Absent Voter Satellite Center, 18100 Meyers Rd., we were talking with a supervisor, a
Ms. Qutlaw, who was explaining the system and answering our guestions,

While we were conversing with Ms. Outlaw inside the center, someone walked in the door
approximately 15 feet to our right and began walking in the direction of Ms. Qutlaw. My wife
noted that it was the same girl with braids that we had seen at the Adams Butzell Center. At the
same time, | also-turned to look at her and noted that she was carrying what | estimated to be
at |east 5-6 bhallots openly in one hand, This struck me as suspect since Michigan law requires
only immediate family members or people living together to handle ballots, ather than their
own, with a few other exceptions that didn’t seem to apply hers.

When | glanced back at Ms. Outlaw she appeared to be concerned that we were viewing the
yeung [ady with the ballots and moved quickly to physically interpose herself between us and
the woman so that we could no longer see the ballots. She appeared to be holding her hands
up, paims facing the young woman in a signal to move back toward the door she came in
through. At the same time, the young woman glanced quickly at my wife and | with a lock of
concern, She stepped back toward the door and, at the non-verhal direction of Ms. Outlaw,
placed the ballots into a small box that was just inside the door.

At this point, Ms. Qutlaw returned to us and resumed the conversation before we left the
room. While walking out | looked down into the small box to view clearly the stack of half a
dozen or so ballots that the young lady had brought in and confirmed that they appeared to be
completed ballots with a signature on the outside. She soon led us upstairs, where | asked to
view the surveillance equipment that was monitoring the outside drop boxes.

There, | asked her where baliots were stored after collection and she stated that they were
stored irra jocked Fddm, to which only she has the key. | then asked about a hypothetical
situation, in which a person was seen by staff to be inserting, say, one hundred ballots into the
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drop box or submitting them to the center’s staff, | asked what her staff's response would be
and she said that this would definitely raise concerns, since it would not be viewed as legal,

I said that was reassuring but then raised the issue of the young woman carrying six ballots into
the center that we had witnessed downstairs. She paused before respanding “she...works for
me”, | asked her why she was bringing them inside the center instead of upstairs to the locked
room. She paused again and stated “she got them from the locked room”. | stated, “but, wait, |
thought only you have the key, right?” At this point she said something to the effect of “where
are we gaing with this?”, after which | said | was just trying to understand why she would be
bringing ballots into the AV Center from the locked room upstairs. She did not have an answer

and with the conversation apparently at an impasse, my wife and | thanked her for her time
and left the facility not long afterward. Coo

T declare under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing statements are true and correct.

DATED thisf) _%ay of November 2020, ﬁ/ /‘z/ﬁ /}/{ /M

Philip'O"Hallofan

On this QQJA day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Philip O'Halloran, who in
my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that he has read the foregoing affidavit by him subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and
that the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters he states to be
on information and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true,

J"f

/"' .
4 FEA A LA bz o .,
N =T e

' Notary Public, _ (Pg kg Qd\ County, Michigan
= o My Commission Expires: _ 1. - 30 - 24

CATHERINE SWETIGH

- .- Notary Public, State of Michigan
N ©» =+ County of Oakland

My Gommisslon Explres Dec, 30, 202
Acting In the Gounty of ¢y L_\rm.li_
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DECLARATION OF FHILIP O’HALLORAN

1, Ph111p O’Halloran, under penalty of perjury, declare as follows

1,

Iam at least 18 yea;rs of age and T have personal knowledge of the facts as stated in this

'Declaratlon
T am registered to vote in the state of Michigan. )
. On or around October Sth my wife Cynthia O’Halloran and I went to the Detrolt

Department of Electmns on West Grand Blvd_ in Detroit. T wanted to participate in the

political process and exercise my rights as poll challenger during the signature

venfication and ballot handling process, which was Being done differently than in prior
elections in winqh I had volunteered. Twas also concerned about the pessible use of the
Relia-vote balllot pro'cessing system. My wife signed up as a poll worker and shared my
concerns. We also wanted to leam about other opportunities, namely when and where we
could observe the processmg of abSentee ballots and learn about the entire procedure,
mcludmg the camera monitoring of the thlrty or $0 drop boxes located throughout the
city. We met Mr. Caven West, Deputy Dlrector to the Detroit C1ty Clerk. Mr. West was
cither unable or unwilling to provide us access to observe the signature verification
process and précedu.re fegarding ballot security. Mr. West was either unwilling or unable
to answer many of our quesuons related to other opportunities to parnctpate inthe
process. Mr. West gave me his email address and offered to track down the information
we were seeking if I sent him a follow up email detallmg our requests. He refused to
provide us wnh hlS phone number

On October 12, 20201 sent an email to Mr. West, The emeul (a copy of which is attached
hereto) outlined our request to observe the processmg of absentee ballots and view the
ballot storage procedure Mr. West still has not responded to that emall

On October 22, 2020 my wife, Steve Potter Georgla Dixon and myself agm'n went to the
Detroit Department of Elections for answers. We were told Mr. West was out sick, We

~ met with Mr. George Azzouz and Mr Damel Baxter. Here agam they were either unable

or unwilling to prov1de us w:th many answers or meaningful access. Again, we were told

to memorlahze our requests via emall and they assured us they would respond.
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Specifically, they stated they would provide the detailed written procedure, followed by
the DOE in the processing of absent voter ballots, . .

6. On October 26, 2020 I forwarded the email I'had sent Mr. West to Mr. Azzouz and Mr.
Baxter and again, emphasized our concerns and requests for access (a.lso attached).

7. On October 27, 2020 I received a less than fulsome response from Mr. Azzouz. It was
still unclear how the signatures were being verified and we were still not able to ascertain
when and where we could observe the signature verification process and ballot security
and storage.

8. My wife and I were repeatedly denied access to observe the signature verification process

~ and to observe the storage and security procedure for absentee ballots.

9. On November 1** Steve Potter and I again visited the DOE and met with a supervisor,
who, after we showed our challenger credentials, did permit us to view a single signature
verification. When Mr. Azzouz and Mr. Baxter saw this, they were unhappy with the
supervisor and Mr Azzouz let her know this. Upon further questioning, Mr. Azzouz did
inform us, finally, that all ballots were stored in a locked room and that it was under 24/7
camera surveillance,

10. On November 3 2020 at approximately 2:30 p.m. I was present at the TCF Center
located at 1 Washington Blvd., Detroit, Michigan 48226, ‘

11. TCF Center was used as the Detroit Department of Elections Central Countlng Board,
where absentee ballots are processed and counted.

12. T was duly authorized and eligible to serve as a poll challenger at the TCF Center.

13. I'tn not sure when this occurred but I was given several blank incident reports and told to
fill them out should I witness anything irregular,

14.1 was told during my training by the Republican party not to aggressively engage anyone
verbally and to avoid Speakmg d1rectly to poll workers but to direct questions and
concerns to their supervisors, v

15. On November 3™, at 2:45 p.m_, a man knocked on the outside door next to the garage at
the back of the TCF AV Counting Board. Several moments later, Daniel Baxter arrived
and opened the door for him and two people entered with a Dodge Caravan (IL plates
118078). They brought in ten USPS trays of ballots. There were no signatures or hand-
off paperwork at the ballot receiving table.

Appendix - 00073

I APP. 907

NV €1:%%:C 0202/97/11 OSIN A4Q AIATADA



Case 1:20-cv-03791-JEB Document 5-6 Filed 12/22/20 Page 74 of 331

Nov. 20. 2020 5:47PM Village Health No, 1957 P, 9

16. At 3:25 p.m,, four men walked in carrying two USPS trays from a Department of
~ Elections van, plates 090490. They would not answer questions about where the ballots
- were from. ' ‘ ‘
17. At 5:10 p.m., five USPs trays arrived at the back entrance, side door, DOE van plate
118078. - : | |
18. On either November 3* or 4% (I can’t recall for certain which day)..T asked a supervisor a
mundane procedural question, but our conversation was almost immediately interrupted
by at least two loud and intrusive Democrats (lawyers or challengers — I did not sée
. vigible credentials) who stated that I could not ask her this question. I found such
antagonisuc behavior to be a frequent occurrence. Poll workers were told by Democrat
- -operatives, some of whom refused to provide credentials on tequest, that their six-foot
separation privileges or other rules were being violated (they were not). The poll worker
would then protest loudly against the false injustice and I, or a GOP colleague, would
soon look for a counting board with more cooperative workers:

13. On alater occasion, I was performing my duties as 2 challenger watching apoll worker
compare the numbers on the ballot envelope and identification tab. I would lean in for
-about 1-2 seconds to match the numbers and then would swiftly step back to a six-foot
separation. I did this with extreme deference to the poll worker, probably at the cost of
accuracy in my observations. At one point, a heavy-set black male came walking very
fast toward me and yelled “get back SDCFEET!” I told him T already was approximately

-~ six feet back but he ioudly insisted I had to get back further and used his own height as a
- visual guide. I took 4 step back and was about to resume my duties when the poll worker
— a large man in his thirties — whose work I had been observing, turned to the first man

and said “THANK you. I was about to ELBOW him!” and he made 2 motion to me with
‘his elbow. He then turned to me and said angrily: “you ‘bout to get an elbow!” I left that
counting board not long afterward. .

20. At the October 29™ challenger conference on the floor of the counting board at TCF
hosted by the chief election contractor for the City of Detroit, Chris Thomas; T had asked
him if we would be:permitted to challenge from the raised platform in the center of the
counting board known as “the stage”. He had responded that he would “take that under
advisement”. He never got back to me. On cither November 3™ or 41 [ asked fellow GOP
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challenger, Bob Cushman to join me in going up onto the stage. On it were maybe a
dozen computers, apparently used to monitor the vote counts coming in from dozens of
tabulators below. We asked a few of the half a dozen or o staff on the stage to explain
the process to us but they declined. I then approached Mr. Thomas, seated at the back
corner of the stage. He looked up and before I could complete a sentence angrily yelled
“you get the hell down offa here!” I protested briefly that we should have a right as
challengers to view this aspect of the vote count but then complied with his instructions.

21. On November 4™ in the afternoon I was monitoring the transfer of the military ballots
when we noted that a poll worker approached the tables adjacent to the ballot receiving
tables, where a large (estimate 3,000) blank ballots were laying in several open postal
trays. The worker picked up at about 3 blank ballots, without signing them out to anyone
or logging them anywhere and walked back to her counting board. I followed her and
then spoke with her supervisor despite loud objections from Democrats (whether
challengers, lawyers or uncredentialled operatives, I don’t know). I showed the
supervisor that this worker had simply laid the ballots on the tablein 2 haphazard,
insecure fashion and I asked if there were several duplications that she was about to
perform. She stated that there were not and that she was merely saving steps by pre-
positioning the blank ballots in the event she needed them for a duplication. T alerted a
GOP lawyer who took over the situation.

-22. At around the same time frame I was told by a.challenger that a fellow GOP challenger
was being blocked from viewing duplications being performed by two Democrats. Those
blocking her were two very large male Democrats who stood shoulder to shoulder. I was
told that when.the female GOP challenger asked to be permitted to see the process, they
refused to comply and éven;«\:‘ulbcked her by placing a large bin that blocked her access

.from the side. T came upon the s1tuatmn as the challenger was walking away from the
table appearing very chstraught and'l was able to confirm the shoulder to shoulder
positioning of the two Democrats standing behind the duplicators.

23. On November 4%, several GOP challengers chanted “Stop the count” to alert the DOE
management 1o our exasperation at being unable to perform our duties, even despite our
lawyers pleadings. The chanting ended in less than two minutes. 1 then heard multiple

loud hostile comments from poll workers and Dem operatives such as “throw ‘em all
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out!” and “call the police!” About 20 police officers subsequently arrived. There were no
scuffles that I could see.

24. My firm impression, based on multiple interactions involving both myself and my
observations of other GOP challengers, between poll workers - including several
weating “BLM” masks and/or tee shirts ~ Democrat operatives, including lawyers and
many uncredentialled persons acting in a thuggish manner, is that there was coordination
of their actions and that the tactic of working together to make and support specious
accusations against GOP challengers was deliberate and designed to intimidate, with the
threat of police action against us, which was successful in several instances. I believe that
the ultimate goal of the organizers of this reprehensible, flagrantly undemocratic behavior
was 10 prevent we Republican challengers from adequately performing our duties. It was
quite a successful ploy.

25. T also affirm that in many previous elections, in which I served as a challenger for the
GOP, dating back to the mid 1990’s and ix jurisdictions as diverse as Southfield,
Rochester and Detroit, I have NEVER seen hostile, orchestrated obstruction of my ability
to perform my lawful duties as a Republican challenger, In fact, as recently as August 4%
of this year at the primary on the same TCF floor in Detroit, I was always treated with
respect and was never hampered in any way in doing my job. Until November 3™ my
interactions with poll workers, supervisors and election officials have always been cordial
and professional Therefore, I conclude that the well of good will and professionalism
was poisoned deliberately by those with an agenda other than ensuring fair and honest
AV Counting Board proceedings.

26. I declare under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing statements are true and correct.

DATED this 4 Pay of November 2020. /Z//.//7 / 7/{74/%”*—
—f 4

Philif O°Hallr:

On this _&Q day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Philip O'Halloran, who in
my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and states
that he has read the foregoing affidavit by him subscribed and knows the contents thereof, and
that the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to thoge matters he states to be
on information and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true.

GATH&IHINE swomg';'gm
N: Public, State ichi
m!ryt.':c:n.lnty of Qakland

My Gomalssion Explres Dec. 30, 2024

Ol;l;ih‘ajnumw [aTaR AL
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OAKLAND COUNTY ELECTION
OBSERVATION REGARDING CELL PHONE
USE IN POD 2

A Cyhthia AQ Hallo.ra'r-l, under penalty of perjury; declare as folloWs:

| worked at Oakland County Electmns on Tuesdav, Nov 3, 2020 asa dUpIn:atorfor Mlhtary Absentee
Voter ballnts The location was 2111 Pont:ac Lake Rd Waterfnrd M, and | wurked in Pod 2.

| observed a man walk into Pod 2 in the late afternoon/early evening and hold aut a cell phone with his
arms fully extended in front of him at eye level. He was about 10-15 feet to my right front. He held it
out for approximately 1 minute. He was not texting. | thought it was unusual that he had his arms
extended in that position for that long.

Note: a tabulator machine was located approximately 30 feet in front of him at 12aclock at the opposite
end of Pod 2.

Description of the inan: Caucasian, mid to late 30’s in age, 5’8 or 5’9 height, medium build (carried a
few extra pounds). Dark hair, blue or green eyes.

| alerted people nearby “Hey, that man has a cell phone in herel” “We aren’t allowed to have phones!”
I'm sure he heard me. Then someone behind me said, “Oh, yeah that is the IT guy,” so | assumed |
should not worry or question his use of a cell phone further.

| did recognize that it was indeed the IT guy, who my supervisor Heather referred to at the beginning of
the election process. The same man came back at the end of the night to sit at or near what | believe
was the adjudication area. |, along with a supposed female Republican poll watcher, waited for the tally
numbers to come out,

[ left the Oakland County Election site approximately 11p.m or 11:15pm. | proceeded to walk to the lit
parking area fo where my vehicle was located. In the dark (what | would call the median), center of the
-horseshoe driveway, was an individual pacing with a lit cigarette, There was only one other vehicle at
the time who was fortunately leaving when | was walking to my car. The median area was exiremely
dark, however, the person with the lit cigarette was moving quickly in my direction.

t suddenly felt very scared and walked even quicker to my vehicle. He was about 20-30 feet away and |
started saying prayers. Fortunately, my car was parked where the other car was backing aut and
leaving. 1 made it to my vehicle safely and noticed that the individual whe was carrying the lit cigarette

was the same [T guy who has helding up his cell phone in Pod 2. He proceeded in the direction of some
other vehicles.

Respectfully submitted,

Cynthia A. O’Halloran
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AFFIDAVIT OF
S Ao

A& na ng sworn, declares under penalty of perjury

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2. I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan 5
— — ﬁ\ f’ﬁ-‘\.
3. TVlove wdre— 4 - TCF tono Quovmal S

)

MWMAMMWY\WM MWWM
o Ml e AofRe e s
Q_—MW
vx,e;t@'\-’“’*

WQWW

Dated: November 8, 2020

q) -29 S
psd O(\\f-
S and sworn (o before me on: I / ?} 00 P
Notary public, igan. County of: (1) Public
My commission expires: W My
1 2| Fo24 in the
24 o o b 5@
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1.

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID PIONTEK

David, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a witness,
am competent to testify to them as well.

I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan, in the city of Livonia,

I was a Republican Poll Challenger on November 4, 2020 at the TCF Center in Detroit
Michigan.

[ began observing at approximately 10:30 am at table 51.

There was a bin marked “problem ballots” and 1 asked the table captain where those
ballots were going. The table captain stated those ballots were going to be further looked
at. [ asked if I could get the numbers of those ballots, and the table captain stated that
he would only allow me to get the number of the top ballots, because he wasn’t going
to allow me to slow the process down. I followed the “problem ballots™ and observed
a poll worker drop them on the central processing table with no supervision.

The table captain, George, stated there were 32 “problem ballots.” I stated that I wanted
to challenge those ballots that they refused to allow me to inspect. I further stated that |
would like the challenged ballots to be recorded in the poll back, but George refused
and said “we will put it in the computer.”

I proceeded to write an incident report and handed it off to the Michigan Republican
Party at the TCF Center.

After a lengthy break, the poll workers returned to begin counting the overseas military

absentee ballots.
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9 On two separate occasions, | witnessed a poll worker make a mistake whilc duplicating
a ballot. The poll worker set the invalid ballots aside. The table captain George brought
two new ballot and the poll workers began duplicating the ballots, but did not properly
secure the two spoiled ones. I repeatedly asked where those spoiled ballots would go,
and George had no answer.

10 Atapproximately 7:52 pm, the problem ballots that were sent to the central processing
table came back to table S1, where 1 was a poll challenger. The poll worker began
scanning a problem ballot and a computer prompt with the words “unlisted person”
came up. [ witnessed the poll worker manually enter six of these ballots into the system
and assign each one a fictitious birth date of 01-01-1900. Since, the poll workers were
moving so quickly, I was able to capture just one name, “ " Her ballot
number was 5430.

11 Throughout the day, 1 witnessed a pattern of intimidation, secrecy, and hostility by the
poll workers. Poll workers would cheer, jeer and clap when poll challengers were
escorted out of the TCF Center. There seemed to be collaboration between the

democratic poll challengers and the City of Detroit poll workers.

12 Dated: November ?,/2020
& 0P

David Piontek

w11 8[20

public. S Michigan, County ol
My commission expires:
Ki rly A,
NOTARY PU - STAT ICHIGAN
County of Wayne

My Commission Expires 10/23/2024
Acting in the County of
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AFFIDAVIT OF TERRY POPLAWSKI
TERRY POPLAWSKI being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:
1. I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well,
2. I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan,
3. At TCF on Wednesday arrived at approx. 12:00 pm as poll challenger. I was
prohibited from entry to the counting floor. Told to wait as they were already over capacity.

Kept door closed. Waited until approx. 4:45 pm when returned home.

Dated: November 8, 2020

TERRY LAWSKI

’r'e,wy L @P/@w.{k/ |

248 661-5141

Subscribed and swom meon: | /8’/309’0
Nolary public, County of:
My commission expires:
93|04
Notary Public - State of Michigan
County of Wayne
My Commission
in the
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IN RE: PRESIDENTIAL ELECTION
NOVEMBER 3-4, 2020
DETROIT, MICHIGAN

I hereby depose and testity under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. ThatI was an attorney for the GOP in Michigan on November 3-4, 2020,

2. ThatI am competent to testify based on my personal knowledge,
experience and observations.

3. That my testimony is true.

4, That] am an attorney and I am licensed in the State of Tennessee and [
have been continuously licensed in Tennessee since 1995, That I am also
licensed in the United States Supreme Court, Sixth Circuit of Appeals,
United States District Courts for the Northern and Southern Districts of
Hlinois, United States Disirict Court for the Eastern District of Michigan,
United States District Cowrt for the Northern District of Indiana, United
States District Court for the Southern District of Ohio, United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin, United States District
Courts for the Middle and Western Districts of Tennessee, United States
District Court for Nevada, United States District Court for Arizona, United
States District Court for Nebraska, United States District Court for the
Western District of Kentucky, and by the Association of Russian Jurists.

5. That my legal experience includes having written fourteen (14) books on
various subjects of the law including the following: In Re: The December

4, 2011 Parliamentary Elections Of The Russian Federation, The Law on

Appendix - 00052
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Copyright of the Russion Federation, The Copyright Legislation of the
Russian Federation (2011}, Reporter of Al Russian Appellate Copyright
Cases, Volumes I-IV, The Civil Code of the Russian Federation, Volumes
LIV, The Art of Gittin' Paid, and The Law on Adverfising of the Russian
Federation.

6. ThatI was present on November 4, 2620 at TCF Center in Detroit,
Michigan as an attorney for the GOP and cbserved processing of ballots at
the Detroit Department of Elections Central Counting Boards for the
majority of the day and into the evening.

7. That I worked with Jason R. Humes who was the leader of the MI-GOP
floor team that day.

8. That at approximately 7:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020, it was brought to
my attention by various poll challengers who personally observed that
there were preblem ballots that were not in the poll books that were being
moved between the elevated restricted area to the center table which was
not accessible to any poll challengers. The elevated restricted area
contained approximately twenty (20) computers and twenty (20) Detroit
Department of Elections employees who had no oversight by poll
challengers. They were located on an elevated stage and their computers
were well above eyesight.

9. That Jason R. Humes effectively challenged all of these problem ballots
and requested that they be sequestered in order to preserve and record his

timely, well-stated challenge to these ballots. He made this request fo
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Messrs. Daniel Baxter and Chris Thomas, Mr, Humes explained the
challenge in detail as set forth in his sworn statement dated November 10,
2020,
10. That Mr. Humes challenged the problem ballots on the following bases:
1. After the problem ballots were removed from each AB on
Tuesday and Wednesday, we were denied all access to observe
the ballots including how they resolved each ballot issue;

2. Ballots were not in the electronic poll book or supplemental

NV €1:41:C 020T/9T/11 DSIN AGAFATFDITY

printed poll book before the ballots were opened;

3. The ballots were all open and removed to an area with no
access to observe;

4, Signature verification could not be assured given access to the
absentee voter application was not available at TCF,

11, That the entire set-up of the administration and calculation of ballots on
November 4, 2020 at the Detroit Department of Elections in the TCF
Center was improper because a central part of their procedure was hidden
and obscured in plain sight by the raised stage on which unknown
functions were performed involving ballots which were not subject to

observation, review, scrutiny or challenge.
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VAR r Sy

Filed 12/22/20 Page 55 of 331

7Y Klme\Pa/es on, 1V, Esq.

U//ﬁ/?@
Dafe

Respectfuily submitted,

KLINE PRESTON LA up

Ui Ao/ >
//G Kline Preston;1V, Esq #01741)
Belle Meade Office Park
4515 Harding Pike, Suite 107
Nashville, TN 37205
Tel: 615-279-1619
Fax: 866-610-9565
kpreston@klineprestonlaw,com

——
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AFFIDAVIT OF CHRISTOPHER SCHORNAK

Christopher Schornak, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1. I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a wit-
ness, am competent to testify to them as well.

2, I am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

3. I went to the TCF Center in Detroit to be a poll challenger, Election Integrity Fund,
Non Partisan Participant on November 4, 2020. I arrived at approximately 10:30am.

4. At each counting board, the poll workers attempted to block me from observing. |
was verbally abused and intimidated by not only the Democratic poll challengers but
the ACLU and other organizations.

5. 1 primarily attempted to observe counting board 88 and 89.

6. I observed ballots that were not in the electronic log or the paper poll log. These
would be considered spoiled ballots . I observed these ballots be counted.

7. I observed a poll worker attempt to match the voter to the paper log. When she was
unable to make the match, she would put the spoiled ballots into a separate pile and go
away from the counting board for a while. She would return approximately 20-30

minutes later and return the spoiled ballots to the pile of ballots to be counted.

8. I observed this same poll worker do this same process over many tables and over
many hours.
9. I attempted to challenge these ballots to a supervisor and was told “We are not talking

to you, you cannot challenge this”.
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10 I went back and spoke to the attorney of the Election Integrity Fund and was instruct-
ed to challenge. After much opposition, I was finally able to log challenges.
11 Ballot #7909 was reassigned to Ballot #0976 at counting board 88 @ 11:35 am, the

ballot number did not match the electronic record. The voter’s name was

12 Another poll challenger Abbie Heilmanen also observed this challenge.
13 Ballot # 5748, reassigned to ballot #505 Board #89, the ballot number did not match

the ballot book or electronic record. The voter’s name was 5

14. Another poll challenger Abbie Heilmanen also observed this challenge.

15 I attempted to make other challenges but was denied access to ballot numbers or
names.

16 There was a stack of at least 40 ballots that could not be authenticated with the ballot

book or electronic record, but was told they would not be challenged because they just
had to be counted.

17 This was similar amongst the eight tables that I observed.

18. I observed that the military ballot duplication process was only performed by two
Democrats rather than one Democrat and one Republican.

19 [ also observed that none of the poll workers had any identification as to their name or
party affiliation as required by regulation. 1 asked if there were any Republicans

present and was told “no”.
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20 When I asked for the number of ballots that had been counted or processed at each
counting board, I was denied information. I was told I had to get it online. I requested

a print out and was told to access it online. Therefore, I was unable to get a total vote

count from each counting board.

Dated: November 8, 2020

Christopher Schornak

tobe tlg'zo

Notary State of County of:

My expires:
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AFFIDAVIT OF ULRIKE SHERER

Ulrike Sherer, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

1.

10.

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a witness,
am competent to testify to them as well.

[ am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

I was a Republican Poll Challenger on November 3, and November 4, 2020.

On November 3, 2020 1 was observing at TCF Center in Detroit Michigan.

I began observing @ 7:00 am on November 3, 2020

[ observed several irregularities.

There was no signature comparison being conducted on absentee ballots. There were
stacks of ballots in “post office” bins in their envelopes, on tables identified by precinct
number.

The person that was at the e-poll computer would scan the envelope and pass it to an-
other person who separated the envelope from the secrecy envelope that contained the

ballot.

The next person would take the ballot out, roll it to flatten it, tear off the perforated stub

with the ballot number and then put the ballot into a box identified as the “tabulation

box™ that was then taken to a tabulator. The tables had 5 poll workers at each table.

Each poll worker was supposed to have a separate job in the verification process. This

did not happen. Each of the 5 poll workers just opened the ballots and put them in the

tabulation box.

The first ballot I observed was scanned, but had no corresponding name on the data

base, but he had a voter number. However, his date of birth was 1921 but he registered
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11

12

13

14

15

16

to vote in 1900. When I challenged the ballot, the poll worker said it does not matter.
When | asked the supervisor , the supervisor refused to take action. I then wanted to fill
out an incident report and requested a ballot number and name and the supervisor re-
fused me the information and told me “we don’t do that here”.

The next ballot I observed was allegedly the wife of the previous voter born 1924, reg-
istered to vote in 1900. Same denied process to challenge. They flipped the ballots over
so I was unable to retrieve the information for my challenge report.

A poll worker told me that they had ballots on Tuesday that they had “partially pro-
cessed on Monday”. With these repeat ballots, they were divvied up amongst poll work-
ers , they each individually processed the ballots without going through the 5 step pro-
cess that each ballot was supposed to be confirmed. Therefore, the separation of the
ballot envelope and the ballot number eliminated any traceability.

Specifically, there was no post mark verification ; there was no ballot review for stray
marks; there was no verification of the voter existing in the data base; there was no
signature comparison or authentication,

These non-verified ballots were then placed in a box and then a separate worker took
the box to the tabulator, without any review.

As a challenger [ was prohibited from observing the postmarks.

As a challenger I was prohibited from observing the ballot duplication process by poll

workers moving in front of me to block me from watching the duplication process.

During duplication the poll workers duplicating the ballots hovered over the ballots

blocking observation.
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17

18.

19

20

21

22

23

24,

Once the duplicate was made, they deposited the original into an envelope and we were
not able to see what happened to the envelope. Upon inquiry as to the disposition of
the originals, it was clear that too much inquiry would result into dismissal from the
site.

On November 4, 2020, I returned to TCF at 6:30am.

I observed incomplete and inconsistent E-poll documentation.

The E-poll system allowed ballot acceptance even when date of birth and/or voter reg-
istration dates were suspect.

Ballots were processed on November 4, 2020 without being verified as being in E-poll

or the absentee voter list. It can be observed that these ballots were sequential, highly

suggestive of fraud.

I also experienced attempts at intimidation. When the voting stopped, Republican poll

watchers arrived and the poll workers blocked the windows so it could not be seen what

was occurring inside. We were also told we could not speak to press.

The newly arrived poll workers called us on the phone informing us that they were

present, but were barricaded onto the roof and being denied entry. When I attempted to

inquire about their entry, 1 was told they were “rioters™

Other forms of intimidation were body blocking, deprivation of chairs to sit in. Then

when Republican poll challengers left to get food or drink, they were denied re-entry. |

was also told a SWAT team was there to make sure we did not “argue too much”.
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25. Dated: November 7, 2020

and to before me
Isi ) =& - 2220
public, State of Mich of:

My commission expires

Notary

in the of

Ulrike Sherer
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STATE OF MICHIGAN

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A. COSTANTINO and EDWARD P. AFFIDAVIT OF ANDREW
McCALL, Jr., SITTO
Plaintiff,

-VS-

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION

COMMISSION; JANICE M. WINFREY, in FILE NO: 20- -AW
her official capacity as the CLERK OF THE
CITY OF DETROIT and the Chairperson of JUDGE

the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION;
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official
capacity as the CLERK OF WAYNE
COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY

BOARD OF CANVASSERS,
Defendants.
/
David A. Kallman (P34200)
Erin E. Mersino (P70886)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551)
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622)

GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER
Attorneys for Plaintiff

5600 W. Mount Hope Hwy.
Lansing, MI 48917

(517) 322-3207/Fax: (517) 322-3208

AFFIDAVIT
The Affiant, Andrew Sitto, being first duly sworn, hereby deposes and states as follows:

1. My name is Andrew Sitto and I was a poll challenger for the November 3, 2020 election.
2. Tarrived at the TCF Center at 9:30 p.m. on November 3, 2020.

3. Ireported to the counting room, which is a large room on the main floor of the TCF Center.

The room is about 100 yards long and about 50 yards wide with windows.

EXHIBIT 3
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The poll challengers watch the counters who were sitting at tables comparing paper ballots
to Michigan electronic poll book or registered voter list (sometimes called the QVF) on
computer screens. Each counter compares the ballot to an electronic database on his/her

computer to determine if the ballot correlates to a person who is registered to vote.

I was standing in the center of the room where there were replacement or duplicate ballots
for damaged ballots. I remained in this location from about 10:00 p.m. until about 4:30 a.m.
If a counter needed a duplicate ballot, they would come to this central location to take a

duplicate ballot.
At approximately 4:30 a.m., | thought everyone was going to go home as our shift had ended.
There were two men in charge of the counting, one in his 30s and one in his 50s.

At approximately 4:30 a.m., on November 4, 2020, the man in his 50s got on the microphone
and stated that another shipment of absentee ballots would be arriving and would have to be

counted.

I heard other challengers say that several vehicles with out-of-state license plates pulled up

to the TCF Center a little before 4:30 a.m. and unloaded boxes of ballots.

At approximately 4:30 a.m., tens of thousands of ballots were brought in and placed on eight

long tables. Unlike the other ballots, these boxes were brought in from the rear of the room.

The same procedure was performed on the ballots that arrived at approximately 4:30 a.m.,

but I specifically noticed that every ballot I observed was cast for Joe Biden.

While counting these new ballots, I heard counters say at least five or six times that all five
or six ballots were for Joe Biden. All ballots sampled that I heard and observed were for Joe

Biden.

There was a shift change at 5:00 a.m. for the poll challengers. Many challengers decided to
leave at the 5:00 a.m. shift change. I decided not to leave and continued to monitor the ballot

counting.

Upon information and belief, the TCF Center was the only place where absentee ballots were

being counted.
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14. Upon information and belief, the TCF Center was the only place where absentee ballots
were being counted.

15. 1 filled out about six or seven incident reports about what occurred at the TCF Center.

16. At approximately 2:00 p.m. on November 4, 2020, election officials covered windows to
the counting room with cardboard to block the view.

17. A little after 2:00 p.m., I exited the glass enclosed room to take a break in the lobby area of
the TCF Center. When I tried to go back into the counting room, security guards refused to
allow me back in to monitor the counting

18. Previously, people could come and go freely into the counting room.

19. The above information is true to the best of my information, knowledge, and belief.

20. Further affiant says not.

W=

Andrew Sitto VY

On this “{Hn day of November, 2020, before me personally appeared Andrew Sitto,
who in my presence did execute the foregoing affidavit, and who, being duly sworn, deposes and
states that he has read the foregoing affidavit by him subscribed and knows the contents thereof,
and that the same is true of his own knowledge and belief, except as to those matters he states to
be on information and belief, and as to those matters he believes them to be true.

Notary Public, M AaAdomb  County,

Michigan
My Commission Expires: 7 { ¢ ZZO 27

g

"mmmn'
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AFFIDAVIT OF EMILY A. STEFFANS

EMILY A. STEFFANS, being sworn, declares under penalty of perjury:

10.

I1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

I am personally familiar with the facts stated in this Affidavit and, if sworn as a
witness, am competent to testify to them as well.

[ am a registered voter in the State of Michigan.

On November 4, 2020, I volunteered as a poll challenger for the GOP.

I arrived at the TCF convention center between 8 and 8:30 am.

After a temperature check at the entrance, [ was given directions to room 260 which is
the room where GOP volunteers went to become credentialed as a challenger.

After about 20 minutes of training I received my credentials and paperwork and
wristband for entry.

I entered the ABC board room.

A gentleman with the GOP walked me around the room and explained the process and
what to look for.

There were not enough GOP volunteers present to have one at each table.

I went table to table witnessing the process.

I was told during my training that only one volunteer per party was allowed to observe
a table at any given time.

In many instances there were more than one democrat volunteer challenger at a table.
When I moved from table to table I was followed by two to three democrat volunteers.
I know they were democrat volunteers because they had green dot stickers on their
clothing.

Within the first hour I observed poll workers duplicate a ballot.
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16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

During the process two workers used their bodies to block seeing the duplication
process.

On numerous occasions I was told by poll workers that [ needed to stay six feet from
them. When [ asked if I could come closer because I could not see the screen to verify
whether the voter and ballot numbers matched [ was told [ could not.

On numerous occasions, 1 was told I could only stand at the screen while democrat
observers were permitted to move freely around the table.

When I asked a question about why a ballot was being placed in a particular box I was
told T was not allowed to talk to the poll worker and did not receive an answer.
Democrat volunteers were verbally aggressive with me.

[ was accused by a democrat volunteer of being part of a “cult” for my support of
Trump.

I witnessed this individual putting large pieces of cardboard over the window so
people trying to get in could not see what was happening on the inside where | was.

I observed a republican contender being prevented from watching during a
duplication. He tried to get closer to the table and move around so he could see, but
when he did, three people swarmed him to block his view. The table leader told him
to move back and that he was close enough. He said repeatedly that he needed to see
the duplication but they would not let him. A man with an election watcher badge told
the poll workers they needed to let him see it and the poll workers responded by
telling the man with the badge that he needed 1o go away.

A worker arrived at the table and joined the group of people pushing the GOP

challenger back. At that point, | intervened and said to the poll workers that they
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needed to let the GOP challenger see the duplication. In response, that worker went
and got the police. When he returned with them he said I needed to stop talking and
that if I did not I would be escorted out.

25. At that point I had watched two GOP people escorted out by the police. When they
were escorted out democrat volunteers and poll workers at the table cheered.

26.  This made me afraid to further pursue the issue with the duplication any further and to

challenge any ballots.

Dated: November 7, 2020
Emily
Subscribed and sworn to before me on:
Is/
Notary public, State of Michigan, County of®
My commission expires: C{,-q

Notary

M
Y Inthe
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STATE OF MICHIGAN
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF WAYNE

CHERYL A COSTANTINO and,
EDWARD P. MCCALL, IR, Case No. 20-014780-AW

Plaintiffs, Hon. Timothy M. Kenny
VS,

CITY OF DETROIT; DETROIT ELECTION
COMMISSION; JANICE WINFREY, in her official

capacity as the CLERK OF THE CITY and the

Chairperson of the DETROIT ELECTION COMMISSION,
CATHY M. GARRETT, in her official capacity as the
CLERK OF WAYNE COUNTY; and the WAYNE COUNTY
BOARD OF CANVASSERS,

Defendants.
GREAT LAKES JUSTICE CENTER FINK BRESSACK
David A. Kallman (P34200) David H. Fink {P28235)
Erin E. Mersino (PTO886) Darry] Bressack{P67820)
Jack C. Jordan (P46551) 38500 Woodward Ave., Suite 350
Stephen P. Kallman (P75622) Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304
5600 W_ Mount Hope Hwy. (248) 971-2500
Lansing, M1 48917 dfinki@finkbressack com
(317) 322-3207 dbressack@finkbressack.com
Avtorneys for Plantiffs Attorneys for City af Detroit, Citv of Detroit

Election Commission and Janice Winfrey

CITY OF DETROIT LAW DEPARTMENT
Lawrence T. Garcia (P54890)

Charles N. Raimi (P29746)

James D. Noseda (P52563)

2 Woodward Ave_, 5" Floor

Detroat, M1 48226

{313) 237-5037

garciali@detroitmi_goc
raimici@detroitmi. gov

nosej@detroitmi. gov

Attorneys for City of Detroit, City of Detroit
Election Commission and Janice Winfrev
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Being duly sworn, Christopher Thomas, deposes and states the following as true, under
oath:

1. I'am a Senior Advisor to Detroit City Clerk Janice Winfrey beginning on September
3, 2020 until December 12, 2020. In this capacity [ advise the Clerk and management stafl on
election law procedures, implementation of recently enacted legislation, revamped absent voter
counting board, satellite offices and drop boxes, Bureau of Election matters and general
preparation for the November 3, 2020 General Election.

2. I served in the Secretary of State Bureau of Election for 40 years beginning in May
1977 and finishing in June 2017, In June 1981 [ was appointed Director of Elections and in that
capacity implemented four Secretaries of State election administration, campaign finance and
lobbyist disclosure programs.

3 In 2013, 1 was appointed to President Barack Obama's Commission on Election
Administration and served until a final report was submitted to the President and Vice-President
in January 2014,

4, I am a founding member of the National Association of State Election Directors
and severed as its president in 1997 and 2013,

A, On November 2, 3 and 4, 2020, | worked at the TCF Center absent voter counting
boards primarily as liaison with challenger parties and organizations. | provided answers to
questions about processes at the counting board tables, resolved disputed about process and
directed leadership of each orgamzation or party to adhere to Michigan Election Law and Secretary
of State procedures concerming the rights and responsibilities of challengers. 1 have reviewed the

complaint and affidavits in this case,
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6. It 15 clear from the affidavits attached to the Complaint that these challengers do
not understand absent voter ballot processing and tabulating. 1t 15 clear also that they did not
operate through the leadership of their challenger party, because the issues they bring forward were
by and large discussed and resolved with the leadership of their challenger party. The leadership
on numerous occasions would ask me to accompany them to a particular counting board table to
resolve an issue. | would always discuss the 1ssue with counting board inspeciors and their
supervisors and the challengers. The affiants appear to have failed to follow this protocol
established in a meeting with challenger organizations and parties on Thursday, October 29, 2020
at the TCF Center where a walk-through of the entire process was provided. A few basics are in
order: The Qualified Voter File (QVF) is a statewide vote registration file and was not available
to counting boards. E-pollbook (EPB) is a computer program used in election day precincts to
create the poll List of voters casting ballots. Supplemental poll lists contain names of voters who
cast an absent voter ballot on Sunday, Monday and Tuesday. At the processing tables no ballots
are scanned. A poll list is not used to confirm whether any specific voter’s ballot is counted.

7. To increase the accuracy of the poll list, the Detroit Department of Elections
emploved the Secretary of State e-pollbook (EPB) to assist in creating the poll List. For each of the
counting boards, the EPB held all the names of voters who requested and returned an absent voter
ballot by mid-afiernoon Sunday, November 1. The download on Sunday was necessary to prepare
for the pre-processing granted by a recently enacted law that allows larger municipalities to process
ballots, but not to tabulate them, for 10 hours on Monday. (To clarify some apparent confusion by
Plainuffs, Wayne County does not tabulate City of Detroit absent voter ballois.)

8. Absent voter ballots received Sunday after the download to EPB, all day Monday

until 4 p.m. and Tuesday by 8 p.m. were not in the EPB. They would be added either by manually

Document

<4 3 of13 P + -

100%



< Elections Mich Affidavit Thomas 1 Contributed by Dennis Wagner (USA Today)

T ST LEUCCVEUIOO I TN O ST TV O, T ageionoTy T LI EY age O O I

Jo)

entering the voter names into the EPB or on supplemental paper poll lists printed from the
Qualified Voter File (QVF).

9. Zachery Larsen is raising an i1ssue about return ballot envelopes where the barcode
on the label would not scan and the voter’s name was not on the supplemental list. He was
observing the correction of clerical errors, not some type of fraud. In every election, clerical errors
result in voters being left off the poll list, whether it is a paper poll list or the EPB. These errors
are corrected so that voters are not disenfranchised. Michigan law ensures that voters are not
disenfranchised by clerical errors,

10, On Wednesday, November 4 it was discovered that the envelopes for some ballots
that had been received prior to November 3 at 8 p.m., had not been received in the QVF. They
would not scan into the EPB and were not on the supplemental paper list. Upon reviewing the
voters’ files in the QVF, Department of Elections staff found that the final step of processing
receipt of the ballots was not taken by the satellite office emplovees. The last step necessary to
receive a ballot envelope requires the satellite employee to enter the date stamped on the envelope
and select the “save™ button. They failed to select “save™,

11 A team of workers was directed to correct those clerical errors by entering the date
the ballots were received in the satellite office and selecting “save™. This action then placed the
voter into the Absent Voter Poll List in the QVF so that the ballot could be processed and counted.
MNone of these ballots were received after 8 p.m. on election day. Most were received on Monday,
November 2™ — the busiest day for the satellite offices.

12, The return ballot envelopes for each of these voters are marked with the date
received and imtialed by satellite employees who verified the voter signatures. By entering the

date on which the ballot was received, no QVF data was altered. The date field was empty because
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the satellite workers did not select ‘save’, thus failing to complete the transaction. The
“backdating™ allegation is that on November 4 the stafl entered the correct dates the ballots were
received — all dates were November 3 or earlier. The date of receipt was not backdated.

13 These return ballot envelopes were discussed with several Republican challengers.
Two challengers were provided a demonstration of the QVF process to show them how the error
occurred, and they chose not to file a challenge to the individual ballots.

14.  The inspectors at the counting boards were able to manually enter voters into the
EPB. The return ballot envelope could easily be observed and every key stroke of the EPB laptop
operator was clearly visible on the large sereen at one corner of the table. The Department of
Elections, at some expense, provided large monitors (see attached photo) to keep the inspectors
safe and provide the challengers with a view of what was being entered, without crossing the 6-
foot distancing barrier. Instead of creating problems for challengers, the monitors made observing
the process very transparent.

15.  The EPB has an “Unlisted Tab™ that allows inspectors to add the names of voters
not listed. The EPB is designed primarily for use in election day polling places and reserves the
Unlisted Tab to enter voters casting provisional ballots. In polling places, voters are verified by
providing their date of birth. Consequently, the EPB is designed with a birthdate field that must be
completed to move to the next step. When using this sofiware in an absent voter counting board, a
birthdate is not necessary to verify voters, as these voters are verified by signature comparisons (a
process which was completed before the ballots were delivered to the TCF Center). Inspectors at
the TCF Center did not have access to voters” birthdates. Therefore, due to the fact that the sofiware
{but not the law or the Secretary of State) requires the field be completed to move to the next step,

1/1/1900 was used as a placeholder. This is standard operating procedure and a standard date used
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by the State Bureau of Elections and election officials across the state to flag records requiring
attention. The date of 1/1/1900 is recommended by the Michigan Secretary of State for instances
in which a placeholder date 1s needed.

16. When Republican challengers questioned the use of the 1/1/1900 date on several
occasions, | explained the process to them. The challengers understood the explanation and,
realizing that what they observed was actually a best practice, chose not to raise any challenges,

17. Ballots are delivered to the TCF Center afier they are processed at the Department
of Elections main office on West Grand Boulevard. On election day, ballots are received from the
post office and the satellite offices. It takes several hours to properly process ballots received on
election day. It appears that some of the affidavits submitted by Plaintiffs are repeating false
hearsay about ballots being delivered, when actually television reporters were bringing in wagons
of audio-video equipment. All ballots were delivered the same way— from the back of the TCF
Hall E.

18 Early in the morming on Wednesday, November 4, approximately 16,000 ballots
were delivered in a white van used by the city. There were 45 covered trays containing
approximately 350 ballots each. The ballots were not visible as the trays had a sleeve that covered
the ballots.

19, The ballots delivered to the TCF Center had been verified by the City Clerk’s staff
prior o delivery in a process prescribed by Michigan law, Thus, when Jessy Jacob complains that
she “was instructed not to look at any of the signatures on the absentee ballots, and | was instructed
not to compare the signature on the absentee ballot with the signature on file™ it was because that
part of the process had already been completed by the City Clerk’s Office in compliance with the

statutory scheme.
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20. It would have been impossible for any election worker at the TCF Center to count
or process a ballot for someone who was not an eligible voter or whose ballot was not received by
the 8:00 p.m. deadline on November 3, 2020. No ballot could have been “backdated,” because no
ballots received after 8:00 p.m. on November 3, 2020 were ever at the TCF Center. No voter not
in the QVF or in the “Supplemental Sheets™ could have been processed, or “assigned™ to a “random
name”™ because no ballot from a voter not in one of the two tracking systems, was brought to the
TCF Center.

21.  Mr. Larsen complains he was not given a full opportunity to stand immediately
behind or next to an election inspector. As stated, monitors were set up for this purpose. Moreover,
election inspection were instructed to follow the same procedure for all challengers. The Detroit
Health Code and safety during a pandemic required maintaining at least 6-feet of separation. This
was relaxed where necessary for a challenger to lean in to observe something and then lean back
out to return to the 6-foot distancing. The inspectors could see and copy the names of each person
being entered into the e-pollbook. If an inspector did not fully accommodate a challenger’s
reasonable request and the issue was brought to the attention of a supervisor, it was remedied.
Announcements were made over the public address system to inform all inspectors of the rules.
If what Mr. Larsen says is accurate, any inconvenience to him was temporary, had no effect on the
processing of ballots, and certainly was not a common experience for challengers,

22, Jessy Jacob alleges she was instructed by her supervisor to adjust the mailing date
of absentee ballot packages being sent out to voters in September 2020, The mailing date recorded
for absentee ballot packages would have no impact on the rights of the voters and no effect on the

processing and counting of absentee votes.
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voters who registered to vote on those days, but the vast majority are voters who applied for and
voted an absent voter ballot.

29, Plaintiffs use “QVF” in place of “EPB”. The QVF is a statewide voter registration
file; an EPB for a counting board is a file of the voters who applied for and returned an absent
voter ballot for that counting board.

30.  There s no “election rule” requiring all absent voter ballots be recorded in the QVF
by 9:00 p.m. on November 3, 2020,

31, Plaintiffs also misunderstand the process when they state ballots were “filled out
by hand and duplicated on site.” Instead, ballots were duplicated according to Michigan law,
Michigan election law does not call for partisan challengers to be present when a ballot is
duplicated; instead, when a ballot is duplicated as a result of a “false read,” the duplication is
overseen by one Republican and one Democratic inspector coordinating together. That process
was followed.

32, Regarding access to TCF Hall E by challengers, there is also much misinformation
contained in the statements of challengers. Under the procedure 1ssued by the Secretary of State
there may only be 1 challenger for each qualified challenger organization at a counting board.
Detroit maintains 134 counting board, thus permitting a like number of challengers per
organization.

33, In mid-afternoon on Wednesday, | observed that few challengers were stationed at
the counting board tables. Rather, clusters of 5, 10 or 15 challengers were gathered in the main
aisles at some tables. 1 conducted a conversation with leaders of the Republican Party and
Democratic Party about the number of challengers in the room and their locations. It became clear

that more than 134 challengers were present for these organizations. No one was ejected for this
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reason, but access to Hall E was controlled to ensure that challenger organizations had their full
complement and did not exceed the ceiling any further than they already had.

34, Challengers were instructed to sign out if they needed to leave Hall E. For a short
period of tme—a few hours—because there were too many challengers in Hall E for inspectors to
safely do their jobs, new challengers were not allowed in until a challenger from their respective
organization lefi the Hall. However, as stated above, each challenger organization, including
Republican and Democrat, continued to have their complement of challengers inside of the Hall
E.

35, As stated previously, challengers are expected to be at their stations next to a
counting board. Unfortunately, this was not the behavior being displayed. Instead, challengers
were congregating in large groups standing in the main aisles and blocking Election Inspectors’
movement. In one instance, challengers exhibited disorderly behavior by chanting “Stop the Vote.™
I believed this to be inappropriate threatening of workers trving to do their jobs. Such action is
specifically prohibited in Michigan election law. Nevertheless, challengers were permitted to
remain.

36, The laptop computers at the counting boards were not connected to the Internet,
Some of the computers were used to process absent voter ballot applications in mid-October and
were connected to the QVF. On election day and the day afier election day, those computers were
not connected and no inspector at the tables had QVF eredentials that would enable them to access
the QVE.

37 The Qualified Voter File has a high level of security and limitation on access to the
file. For example, it is not true that a person with QVF credentials in one city is able to access data

in another city's file within the QVF. That is not possible.

10
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38 A point of much confusion in these claims is centered on the law that peamits a city
clerk to verify the signatures on absent voter ballots before election day. Inspectors at absent voter
counting boards do not verify the signatures on the return ballot envelopes. Department of
Elections staff may use a voter’s signature on an application to verify the voter's signature on
return ballot envelope. Or the staff may use the voter's signature in the QVF to make the
comparison. Often using the QVF is more efficient than the application signatures.

39.  Iam not aware of any valid challenge being refused or ignored or of any challengers
being removed because they were challenging ballots. Ballot challengers are an important part of
the democratic process and were fully able to participate in the process at the TCF Center.

40.  In conclusion, upon reviewing Plaintiffs’ Complaint, Affidavits, and Motion, I can
conclude based upon my own knowledge and observation that Plaintiffs’ claims are misplaced and
that there was no fraud, or even unrectified procedural errors, associated with processing of the

absentee ballots for the City of Detroit,

T affirm that the representations above are true.

Further, Affiant sayeth not,

Date: MNovember 11, 2020

CEtﬂlST{]PHER THOMAS

Subscri:i&d and sworn to before me
this | (¥ day of Auemeeg |, 2020.

a0 ack

Notary PyblicyAnCY M. FLACK

County of VA Buken), STATE oF MICH &frd
My Commission Expires: £3—€5-I035

ACTing (8 Bereienw Countsy MiCE An)
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Rhonda Weber

(Unavailable)
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